KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BHAGWATI PLASTOWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying IND-AS financial statements of Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended on that date, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the
aforesaid IND-AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2020, its Profit (including other
comprehensive income), Changes in Equity and Cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SA’s) section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. My responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND-AS financial statements section of my report. I am independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the IND-AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and I have fulfilled
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my
audit of the IND-AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of my audit of the IND-AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon,
and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is
an unlisted company.

Information other than the IND-AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does
not include the IND-AS financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. These other information is
expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the IND-AS financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the IND-AS
financial statements or my knowledge obtained during the course of my audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work 1 have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
information, I am required to report that fact. [ have nothing to report in this regard.
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these IND-AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of tHe assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the IND-AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the IND-AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IND-AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report

that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurdnce, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, I am
also responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and thé reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If |
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, [ am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the IND-AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, mcludgﬁg}ﬁl‘

disclosures, and whether the IND-AS financial statements represent the underlying trdns;lgttens amskk \
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

te with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
f the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
identify during my audit.

those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
sonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
‘ters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were
icance in the audit of the IND-AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore
matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
sure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter
be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
> expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

ther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such
e books and records as I considered appropriate and according to the information and
given to me, I set out a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
extent applicable.

npany does not own any fixed assets, hence the clause is not applicable.

entory has been physically verified by the management during the year. The discrepancies
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have
-operly dealt with in the books of account.

he company has granted unsecured loans to company covered in the register maintained
nder section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. The terms and conditions of the grant of such
)ans are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

here is no stipulation regarding recovery of loans as these loans are repayable on demand.
he aforesaid loans being repayable on demand, there is no amount overdue for more than
inety days in respect of recovery of principal and interest of the above loans.

ding to the information and explanations given to me and the records of the Company
ined by me, the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been
lied with in respect of loans, investments guarantees and securities given by the Company.

ompany has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
-ovisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and
iles framed there under are not applicable.

-ules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
nment under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
ompany.

he company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
mployees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, scivice tax, duty of customs, duly of excise,
alue added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
uthorities and there is no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last da ahe

af

ayable.



KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

b) According to the records of the company examined by me and according to information and
explanations given to me, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax,

service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

8.) According to the records of the Company examined by me and the information and explanations
given to me, the Company does not have any outstanding from any banks or government nor has it
any outstanding debenture. The company has accepted loan from Non Banking financial company
and has successfully repaid interest and principle as and when demanded.

9.) In my opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to me, there was no
money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and
the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for which they were obtained.

10.) According to the information and explanations given to me, I report that neither any fraud by the
company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

11.) As examined by me, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel during

the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.
12.) The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

13.) According to the information and explanations given to me and the records of the Company
examined by me, the Company has complied with the requirements of sections 177 and 188 of the
Act with respect to its transactions with the related parties. Pursuant to the requirement of the
applicable Accounting Standard, details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in
Notes to the standalone IND-AS financial statements for the year under audit.

14.) According to the information and explanations given to me, I report thatthe company has neither
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

15.) According to the information and explanations given to me, I report that the company has not

entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence
clause is not applicable.

16.) According to the information and explanations given to me, I report that company is not required to
be registered u/s 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, I report that:
1. I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit.

2. In my opinion, proper books of accocunt as required by law have been kept by the Company, sc
it appears from my examination of those books.
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

ance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and the
ow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement
: books of account;

)pinion, the aforesaid standalone IND-AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
ds specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
1014,

basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken
rd by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020
ing appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

spect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the
iy and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to my separate report in Annexure A.

sspect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
nents of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In my opinion and to the best of my
tion and according to the explanations given to me, the remuneration paid by the Company
rectors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

spect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
lompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in my opinion and to the best of my information
sording to the explanations given to me:

The company does not have any pending litigation.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

nar Bengani

No. 302555

th

/2020
)555AAAABD4891
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGAN!I

Chartered Accountant

TO THE MEMBERS OFBHAGWATI PLASTOWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013
I have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhagwati Plastoworks Private

_ Limited as of 315t March, 2020 in conjunction with my audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. My audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

I believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect ihf;.
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company. % NP

4 g /ne . o005\
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

i) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipt and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company.

iiij Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In my opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 315t March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For KRISHAN KUMAR-BENGANI

Chartered Accountw s‘?& ]

f y a
Krishan Kumar Bengani
Membership No. 302555
Place: Howrah
Date: 14/07/2020
UDIN: 20302555AAAABD4891
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Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020

Particulars Note | Asat31.03.20 | Asat31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 - -
(b) Intangible . .
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Investment 2 - 360,000
(i) Other Financial Assets 3 118,706 108,706
Total Non - Current Assets 118,706 468,706
Current assets
{a) Inventories 4 126,561,885 123,826,712
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 3,572,317 3,493,047
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 5,893,098 6,183,163
(iii) Other financial assets 7 7,471,789 7,424,896
{c) Current Tax Assets 8 1,028,857 1,032,339
(d) Other current assets 9 27,166 159,322
Total Current Assets 144,555,112 142,119,480
Total Assets 144,673,818 142,588,186
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 10 11,036,000 11,036,000
(b) Other Equity 11 80,598,560 74,536,164
Total equity 91,634,560 85,572,164
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 12 29,844,823 26,534,399
Total non-current liabilities 29,844,823 26,534,399
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 232,432 7,293,370
(ii) Trade and other payables 14
outstanding to micro enterprises & small enterprises; # B
outstanding to other than micro enterprises & small
enterprises =
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 614,595 710,845
(b) Other current liabilities 16 20,797,408 20,797,408
{c) Provisions 17 1,550,000 1,680,000
Total Current Liabilities 23,194,435 30,481,623
Total liabilities 53,039,258 57,016,022
Total Equity & Liabilities 144,673,818 142,588,186

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Krishan Ku
Chartered Accg

. ' Ay 4
b 5\_./\\.\’ .
_— :
Krishan Kumar Ben :
Membershi N:J 302555
Later | f'_f I ! D )4
Place: Howrah - 71110

voin: 0209 5”‘{;‘)/ \OBD YT/

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

BHAGW;‘«‘" F’uﬁ EC*W{}RK
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BHAGWAT! PLASTO WORKS PVT LID.
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Director
Director




Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

Y ded Y
Particulars Note ear ende ear ended
31.03.20 31.03.19
Revenue
Revenue from operations 18 8,705,051 16,373,448
Other income 19 243,071 277,892
Total Revenue 8,948,122 16,651,340
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 20 2,735,173 2,496,154
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 21 (2,735,173) 1,618,888
Employee benefit expense 22 354,190 330,530
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 - -
Finance costs 24 474,134 1,533,736
Other expenses 25 196,229 3,327,806
Non Current Financial Assets (Investment) written off 360,000 -
Total expenses 1,384,553 9,307,114
Profit before tax 7,563,570 7,344,227
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 1,550,000 1,680,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year (48,827) 733,572
Total tax expense 1,501,173 2,413,572
Profit after tax 6,062,397 4,930,655
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - -
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - E
Total comprehensive income for the year 6,062,397 4,930,655
Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per share 5.49 5.69
Diluted earnings per share 5.49 5.69
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial
For Krishan Kumar Benganj For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountan ! EHAGWATI PLA ORKS PVT. LTD.
— LT Qk_h\ | «
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Krishan Kumar Bengari *;jff__ll -. #
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Membershlf No. 302555\.‘"""

Date: M/, -’)/ N D

Place: Howrah - 711106
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Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended

For the year ended

Krishan Kumar Belg
Membership Ng. 30238h=__
pate: 1”1/ 202"
Place: Howrahl - 711106

uoin: e G0 ) S5 HANARD Y58

Director

31st March,2020 31st March,2019
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 7,563,570 7,344,227
Adjustments for
Sundry Balances written back % 3,159,660
Interest Income (243,071) (277,892)
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 110,424 900,056
Non Current Financial Assets (Investment) written off 360,000
Interest Paid 312,940 540,293 633,461 4,415,284
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 8,103,862 11,759,511
(Increase) / Decrease in Security Deposits (10,000) 17,865
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (2,735,173) 1,618,888
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (79,270) 3,529,683
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 132,156 (1,790)
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances (46,893) (3,232,659)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables - (1,050,504)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 3,103,750 (5,744,667)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities - 364,570 (7,011,414) (11,874,598)
Cash generated from operations 8,468,432 (115,087)
Less; Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 1,627,691 2,257.075
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 6,840,741 (2,372,162)
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 6,840,741 (2,372,162)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Investment in Fixed Deposits (212,894) (170,484)
Interest Income 243,071 277,892
Net cash from investing activities 30,177 107,408
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (7,060,938) 2,315,173
Interest Paid (312,940) (7,373,878) (633,461) 1,681,712
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (7,373,878) 1,681,712
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (502,959) (583,042)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 1,207,034 1,790,076
704,075 1,207,034
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 695,213 1,161,351
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 8,862 45,643
704,075 1,207,034
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board
For Krishan Kumar WAT! PLASTO WORKS PVT. LTD BHAGWATI PLASTO WQRKS PVT. LTD.
Chartered Accou - — e ; |
pa Csadedp Hivew® T (uu |
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L i%,’ g Director j Director

Director




Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083
Notes to the financial statements

Note 1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

Tangible

Intangible

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.18

Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19

Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.20

Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.18

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20

Net carrying amount as at 01.04.18

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20




Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

Notes to the financial statements As at 31.03.20
Note 2 Financial Assets (Investment)

Investment in Equity Instruments (At Cost, fully Paid)
Equity Shares, Unquoted (Face Value Rs.10/- each)

As at 31.03.19

Dalton Kunj Private Limited (Qty - 40,000 Shares) - 80,000
Manavata Vyapaar Private Limited (Qty - 50,000 Shares) - 100,000
Perci Fashion Private Limited (Qty - 90,000 Shares) - 180,000
- 360,000
Note 3 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposit against electricity 108,706 108,706
Security Deposit against Annual fees for dematerialisation 10,000 =
TOTAL 118,706 108,706
Note 4 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in process 126,561,885 123,826,712
Total 126,561,885 123,826,712
Note 5 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables
More than six months - -
Less than six months 3,572,317 3,493,047
Receivables from related parties - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
3,572,317 3,493,047
Break up of security details of Trade receivables
Secured, considered good =
Unsecured, considered good 3,572,317 3,493,047
Doubtful = -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts #, -
Total 3,572,317 3,493,047
Note 6 Financial Assets (Cash and Bank Balance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 695,213 1,161,391
Cheques, drafts on hand -
Cash in hand 8,862 45,643
Others
-Term Deposits with maturity more than 1 years 5,189,023 4,976,129
including interest accurued
(pledged with Bank against credit facilities availed)
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 5,893,098 6,183,163
Note 7 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Unsecured, considered good
Other Advances 7,471,789 7,424,896
TOTAL 7,471,789 7,424,896
Note 8 Current tax assets and liabilities
Unsecured, considered good
Current tax assets (Advance Income Tax and TDS) 1,028,857 1,032,339
TOTAL 1,028,857 1,032,339
Note 9 Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses 15,425 153,452
Interest accured on Security Deposit 11,741 5,870
TOTAL 27,166 159,322
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Note 10 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital

Number of Shares 1,250,000 1,250,000

Total Amount 12,500,000 12,500,000
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital

Number of Shares 1,103,600 1,103,600

Total Amount 11,036,000 11,036,000

c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding

As at the beginning & end of the year 1,103,600 1,103,600

No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 562,870 562,870

Percentage of total shares held 51.00% 51.00%
Raj Kumarlaiswal

Number of Shares 104,500 104,500

Percentage of total shares held 9.47% 9.47%
Ram Gopal Manpuria (HUF}

Number of Shares 80,000 80,000

Percentage of total shares held 7.25% 7.25%
Shree Prakash Manpuria (HUF)

Number of Shares 74,000 74,000

Percentage of total shares held 6.71% 6.71%
Arjun Patra (HUF)

Number of Shares 61,800 61,800

Percentage of total shares held 5.60% 5.60%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 562,870 562,870
Percentage of total shares held 51.00% 51.00%

g} Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares “ B,
Total Amount =

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
Nao such shares have been issued nor there has
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Note 11 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Securities Premium
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Charges during the year
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive.lncome

Total

Note 12 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Advance against Properties
Security Deposits

Total

Note 13 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
Nen Banking Financial Companies (Related)
Other body Corporates (Related)
From other than Related Parties
Total

Note 14 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises
Other than above

Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Statutory Payables

Total

Note 16 Other Current Liabilities

Advances from Customer and Others
Total

Note 17 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax
Total

As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
64,568,164 59,637,509
6,062,397 4,930,655
70,630,560 64,568,164
9,968,000 9,968,000
9,968,000 9,968,000
80,598,560 74,536,164
28,858,000 25,658,000
986,823 876,399
29,844,823 26,534,399
94,631 6,411,297
137,801 882,073
232,432 7,293,370
522,056 568,546
92,539 142,299
614,595 710,845
20,797,408 20,797,408
20,797,408 20,797,408
1,550,000 1,680,000
1,550,000 1,680,000
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Note 18 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Services
Construction Activities

Other Charges
Sub-Total
Other Operating Income
Rental Income
Maintenance & Other Charges
Sub-Total

TOTAL

Note 19 Other Income

Interest Income

Sundry Balances written back (net)
Total

Note 20 Construction Activity Expenses
Labour Charges

Other Construction Expenses
Consumption

Note 21 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 22 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives
Total

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund

Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Interest paid to Others

Other Borrowing Cost

Total

Note 25 Others Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Sundry Balances written off (net)
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses
Bank Charges

Conveyance

Filing Fees

General Expenses

Postage & Telephones Charges
Printing & Stationery
Professional Charges

Fee for Dematerialization
Auditor's Remuneration

Total

Year ended Year ended
31.03.20 31.03.19
- 7,517,560
- 143,340
- 7,660,900
7,978,044 7,978,044
727,007 734,504
8,705,051 8,712,548
8,705,051 16,373,448
243,071 277,852
243,071 277,892
. 65,915
2,735,173 2,430,239
2,735,173 2,496,154
123,826,712 125,445,600
126,561,885 123,826,712
(2,735,173) 1,618,888
354,190 330,530
354,190 330,530
312,940 633,461
110,424 900,056
- 219
50,770

474,134 1,533,736
4,650 4,650
- 3,159,660
5,098 4,277
12,944 18,455
6,100 6,500

4,456
2327 2,830
54,526 48,434
78,470 75,500

20,158
7,500 7,500

196,229

3,327,806
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Statements of Changes in Equity
A. Share Capital

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2018 1,103,600

Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year

Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 1,103,600

Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year -

Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2020 1,103,600

B. Other Equity

Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company Retas.ned SECI.II'I.tIES Total
Earnings Premium

Balance at 1 April 2018 59,637,509 9,968,000 69,605,509

Transfers - - -

Profit for the year 4,930,655 - 4,930,655

IND-AS adjustments - - -

Other comprehensive income = - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 4,930,655 - 4,930,655

Balance at 31 March 2019 64,568,164 9,968,000 74,536,164

Transfers - - -

Profit for the Year 6,062,397 - 6,062,397

IND-AS adjustments : = =

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the period 6,062,397 - 6,062,397

Balance at 31 March 2020 70,630,560 9,968,000 80,598,560
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31 (1)

31(2)

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Profit before tax 7,563,570 7,344,227
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (2019: 26%) 1,966,528 1,909,499
Effect of Fair Market Value adjustments in accordance with IND-AS 28,710 234,015
Effect of Dis-allowances for Tax purpose 93,600 -
Effect of Allowances for Tax purpose (622,287) (565,375)
Other differences 83,449 102,461
Total 1,550,000 1,680,000
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to current tax of prior years (48,827) 733,572
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 1,501,173 2,413,572

The tax rate used for the year FY 2019-20 and 2018-19 for reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on taxable profits

under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Related Party Disclosure
Related Party Relationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding
Transactions & Balanaces :

No related party transactions nor any balances have been reported by the management.

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course
of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no

contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management.

Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil)

Income Tax Demand - Rs.1.43 lacs. These demand includes payable towards addition by Income Tax Officer, Demand & Interest on

Summary Assessment. Etc

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment

The company did not had any Property, Plant and Equipment as at the date of transition.
Deemed Cost of Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The company did not had any Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures as at the date of transition

Ind AS mandatory exemptions
Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the
same date in accordance with previous GAAP. Ind AS estimates at 1st April, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same

date made with conformity with previous GAAP,

De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions
occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition

retrospectively from a date of entity’s choosing.

The entity has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions prospectively from the date of transition.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification an~ measurement of assats on the basis of facts and circumstance s

at the date of transition to Ind AS. The entity has applied this exception. -
Fair Valuation of Investments g

Y " L
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(ii)

(iii)

32

Under the previous GAAP, investments were classified as long term investments or current investments based on the intended
holding period and realisability. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value
changes of these investments have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition.

Transition to Ind AS — Reconciliations

ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables

represent the reconciliations from Previous GAAP to Ind AS:

Reconciliation of Other Equity

Particulars
Reserves and Surplus as per IGAAP

Add: Adjustment due to Fair valuation of Security Deposits Received

Other Equity as per Ind AS
Notes:

As on 31.03.2020
78,872,848
1,725,712
80,598,560

As on 31.03.2019
72,700,028
1,836,136
74,536,164

Under Indian GAAP, there are certain security deposits received which are carried at nominal value. Ind AS requires the

measurement of these assets at fair value at inception and subsequently these assets are measured at amortized cost. At
inception date, Company recognises difference between deposit fair value and nominal value as income/expensesand the
Company recognises notional interest income/expenses on these deposits over the lease term.

Indian GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focusses on differences between
taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance
sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance
sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary
differences, which was not required under Indian GAAP. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to different
temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax
adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of

eauitv.

The Company has undertaken a detailed exercise to determine the manner of allocation of expenses to inventory in context of
Ind AS and accordingly realignedallocation of expenses and income to comply with Ind AS requirements.

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

There are no differences between the Cash Flow Statement presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP.

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2020

Particulars at
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i)  Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other financial assets
Total Financial Assets
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings
(i) Trade and other payables
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities
As on 31.03.2019
Particulars
(a) Financial Assets
(i)  Investments
(i)  Trade receivables
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents
{iv) Other financial assets
Total Financial Assets
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Borrowings

Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value

3,572,317 3,572,317 3,572,317
5,893,098 5,893,098 5,893,098
7,590,495 7,590,495 7,590,495
17,055,910 17,055,910 17,055,910
232,432 232,432 232,432
30,459,418 30,459,418 30,459,418
30,691,850 30,691,850 30,691,850

Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value

360,000 360,000 360,000
3,493,047 3,493,047 3,493,047
6,183,163 6,183,163 6,183,163
7,533,602 7,533,602 7,533,602
17,563,812 17,569,812 17,5€9,812

7,293,370

7,293,370
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(ii) Trade and other payables - - -

(iii)  Other financial liabilities 27,245,244 27,245,244 27,245,244
Total Financial Liabilities 34,538,614 34,538,614 34,538,614
Capital Requirements

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade
and other payables less cash and cash equivalents

A 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Particulars i .
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

B i | = d short-t . includi

orro\._v{ngs (long-term an . short-term, including current 232,432 7293,370
maturities of long term borrowings)
Trade payables d R

h ayabl t d -current, excluding current

Ot er‘ p yables (current an ] non-current, exc g 30,459,418 27,245,244
maturities of long term borrowings)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (704,075) (1,207,034)
Net debt 29,987,775 33,331,580
Equity share capital 11,036,000 11,036,000
Other equity 80,598,560 74,536,164
Total Capital 91,634,560 85,572,164
Gearing ratio 3.06 2.57

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020 and
March 31, 2019.

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management
of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures
and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real
estate risk. The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or gerffideity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no




Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC0O88083

Notes to the financial statements

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by by accepting fixed rate loans and borrowings which are repayable on demand
at the option of company and lender both. Most of the borrowings of the Company are unsecured and at fixed rates. The
Company has interest bearing oustanding borrowings from 2 parties at the end of the period. In case the interest rate in the
markets falls below the rate payable by company, company can negotiate interest rate of exisiting loan or can repay the
borrowing and re-borrow at prevalent market rate. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Receivables resulting from sale of praperties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before
transfer of ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company
does not hold collateral as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019
More than & months B
Others 3,572,317 3,493,047

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance
with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits
assigned to each counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout
the year subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial
loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the statement of financial position at 31 March 2020 and 2019 is the carrying amounts.

Liguidity Risk

The Company's investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and
return. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due. In case of short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flows and the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014:
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

iij The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable

losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

/

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 20060270AAAAEU7860
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of BHAGWATI BUILDERS &
DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

1. a)

c)

b)

c)

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets; hence
the clause is not applicable.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

3.) The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

4.) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

5:) The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of

India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.
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6.)

8.)

10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

14.)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company does not have any outstanding from any banks,
financial institutions or government nor has it any outstanding debenture; hence the clause
is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has

neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.
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15.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them,
Hence clause is not applicable.

16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For' Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

A

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 20060270AAAAEU7860
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BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020

Particulars Hlugs As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 23,219 76,615
(b) Intrangible 2 - ]
(c) Financial Assets
{i) Investment 3 - -
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 104,888 104,388
(d) Other Non current Assets 5 14,481,000 14,481,000
Total Non - Current Assets 14,609,107 14,662,503
Current assets
(a) Inventories & 39,818,876 42,142,659
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 23,808,179 24,540,839
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 166,722 601,006
(iii) Other financial assets 9 84,925,788 78,514,049
(c) Current Tax Assets 10 571,998 618,136
(d) Other current assets 11 - -
Total Current Assets 149,291,563 146,416,689
Total Assets 163,900,670 161,079,192
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 272,000 272,000
(b) Other Equity 13 119,566,944 112,634,101
Total equity 119,838,944 112,906,101
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 - .
(i) Other financial liabilities 15 10,351,588 9,478,266
Total non-current liabilities 10,351,588 9,478,266
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Barrowings 16 - 692,110
(ii) Trade and other payables 17 1,097,753 1,292,814
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 98,225 -
(b) Other current liabilities 19 31,064,159 36,159,902
(c) Provisions 20 1,450,000 550,000
Total Current Liabilities 33,710,137 38,694,826
Total liabilities 44,061,725 48,173,092
Total Equity & Liabilities 163,900,670 161,079,192

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

g™

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: ,"4/(3 ?’(2-0 20

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

BUAGWATI BUILOERS & DEVELDBRIENT P10
Brodeopp IHiver

DirecPirector
BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PVT, LTD.

',%—‘2. on J—& <
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Directar
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BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars Note As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
Revenue
Revenue from operations 21 6,752,420 1,467,788
Other income 22 5,719,978 6,181,378
Total Revenue 12,472,398 7,649,166
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 23 272,626 -
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & finished goods 24 2,323,783 -
Employee benefit expenses 25 623,814 534,778
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1 53,396
Finance costs 26 = -
Other expenses 27 105,009 4,546,350
Total expenses 3,378,628 5,081,128
Profit before tax 9,093,770 2,568,038
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 1,450,000 550,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 710,926 181,518
Total tax expense 2,160,926 731,518
Profit after tax 6,932,844 1,836,520
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - -
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans B E
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 6,932,844 1,836,520
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 6,932,844 1,836,520
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 27,200 27,200
Basic earnings per share 254.88 67.52
Diluted earnings per share 254.88 67.52

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

\/W/}// '

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: | 4[0? 2020

For and on behlaf of the B?eﬁcﬁ
BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PVT.

P’(c.. dedp 1,,.\‘,;—.\)5—

DirectbHrectoy

BHAGWAT! BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PVT. LTD)

)
ol =

—

Director

Director




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2020

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2020 31st March,2019
(Amount in °) (Amount in *)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 9,093,770 2,568,038
Adjustments for:
Interest Received (5,719,978) (6,181,378)
Depreciation & Amortisation 53,396 ---
Sundry Assets written off 1,996,287
Net Unrealised Exchange (Gain) / Loss == s
(5,666,582) (4,185,091)
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 3,427,188 (1,617,053)
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operaling assets!
Other Financial Assets (Non Current) = =
Inventories 2,323,783 -
Trade Receivables 732,660 1.836,276
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade Payables (195,061) (203,899)
Other Financial Liabilities 971,547 (524,320)
Other Current Liabilities (5,095,743) 1,962,391
(1,262,813) 3,070,448
Cash Flow from Extraordinary Items 2,164,374 1,453,395
Cash Generated from Operations == e
Net Income Tax (Paid) / Refunds (1,214,788) (1,795,636)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 949,586 (342,241)
B. Cash flow from investing activities :
Sale / (Purchase) of Fixed Assets — -
Capital Advances - -
Short-Term Loans & Advances (6,411,739) (6,152,906)
Interest Received 5,719,978 6,181,378
(691,761) 28,472
Net cash from investing activities (691,761 28,472
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short-Term Borrowings (692,110) 110
(692,110) 110
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (692,110) 110
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) (434,285) (313,659)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 601,006 914,665
166,722 601,005
CASH AND CASH EQUIVELANTS COMPRISE:
Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 153,740 568,942
Cheques, drafts on hand - -
Cash in hand 12,982 32,064
166,722 601,006
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
= . LTD.
W BHAGWAT] BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PVT. LTD.  BHAGWATI BUILDERS & ua(*iEILOPMENT PVT. LT
= LI
ﬂ Reodep tnives™ /(_-{?,; e Fe.
Vineet Khetan 5 Director
Propirietar Director
Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street Director Director

Kolkata - 700 001,
Date : 14l 02 l2620




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Notes to the financial statements as on 31.03.2020

Note 1 & 2 Property, Plant and Equipment For the year ended 31.03.2020
Tangible (1) Intangible (2)
Particulars
Office Equipement Software

Gross carrying amount 01.04.2018 89000
Additions .
Disposals 5
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 89,000
Additions -
Disposals 3
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.20 89,000
Accumulated depreciation as on 01.04.2018 12,385
Depreciation charge during the year -
Disposals :
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 12,385
Depreciation charge during the year 53,396
Disposals &
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20 65,781
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 76,615
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20 23,219

Fixed Asset Amount 23,219

Depriciation 53,396




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 3 Investment

Note 4 Financial Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits

TOTAL

Note 5 Other non-current asset
Unsecured, Considered Good
Capital Advances

Note 6 Inventories

{At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Finished Stock
Work in process

Total Inventories

Note 7 Trade receivables

Trade receivables

Receivables from related parties
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Break up of security details:
Trade receivables

(a) Secured, considered good

(b) Unsecured, considered good
{c) Doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total

Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand

{c ) Cash in hand

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Note 9 Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Loan To Others
Other Advance to Related Parties
Other Advance to Others
TOTAL

Note 10 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax and TDS

TOTAL

As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
104,888 104,888
104,888 104,888

14,481,000 14,481,000
14,481,000 14,481,000
. 2,596,409
39,818,876 39,546,250
39,818,876 42,142,659
23,808,179 24,540,839
23,808,179 24,540,839
23,808,179 24,540,839
23,808,179 24,540,839
153,740 568,942
12,982 32,064
166,722 601,006
80,322,556 5,167,358
4,603,232 73,346,691
84,925,788 78,514,049
571,998 618,136
571,998 618,136




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

MNote 11 Other current assets

Prepaid Expenses - -
Balance with Statutory Authorities = =
TOTAL - -

Note 12 Equity Share Capital

(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 100,000 100,000
Total Amount 1,000,000 1,000,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 27,200 27,200
Total Amount 272,000 272,000

¢} Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 27,200 27,200
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 27,200 27,200
Percentage of total shares held 100% 100%

@) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 27,000 27,000
Percentage of total shares held 99.26% 99.26%

Ravi Prakash Pincha (Nominee of above)
Number of Shares 190 190
Percentage of total shares held 0.70% 0.70%

|
190 Shares held by Ravi Prakash Pincha are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia (Nominee of above)
Number of Shares 10 10
Percentage of total shares held 0.04% 0.04%

|IU Shares held by Pradeep Kumar Pugalia are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares - -
Total Amount = -

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 11 Other current assets
Prepaid Expenses

Balance with Statutory Authorities
TOTAL

Note 12 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares
Total Amount

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares
Total Amount

c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held

As at 31.03.20

Asat 31.03.19

100,000
1,000,000

27,200
272,000

27,200

27,200
100%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of

dividend and repayment of capital

100,000
1,000,000

27,200
272,000

27,200

27,200
100%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of

liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held
Ravi Prakash Pincha (Nominee of above)
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held

27,000
95.26%

190
0.70%

27,000
99.26%

190
0.70%

190 Shares held by Ravi Prakash Pincha are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia (Nominee of above)
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held

10
0.04%

10
0.04%

|IO Shares held by Pradeep Kumar Pugalia are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares
Total Amount

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from

shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Notes to the financial statements as on As at31.03.20 Asat31.03.19
Note 13 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

As at the beginning of the year 112,634,101 110,797,580

Add: Profit for the year 6,932,844 1,836,521

As at the end of the year 119,566,944 112,634,101
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income = -

Other items of Other Comprehensive Income - =
Total 119,566,944 112,634,101
Note 14 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)

Secured - at amortised cost

Loan - -
Total non-current borrowings - -
Note 15 Other Financial Liability (Non Current)

Unsecured

Advance against properties 9,451,588 8,578,266

Security Deposits 900,000 900,000
Total 10,351,588 9,478,266
Note 16 financial liabilities - Borrowings (Current)

From other than Related Parties (Unsecured) - 692,110
Total - 692,110
Note 17 financial liabilities - Trade Payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises - -
Other than above 1,097,752 1,292,813
Total 1,097,752 1,292,813
Note 18 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

Statutory Liabilities 98,225

Other Liabiltiies S -
Total 98,225 -
Note 19 Other Current Liabilities

Advances from Customer and Others 31,064,159 36,159,902
Total 31,064,159 36,159,902
Note 20 Provisions

Provision for Income Tax 1,450,000 550,000
Total 1,450,000 550,000




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792
Notes to the financial statements

Note 21 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Construction Activities
Sale of Services (Maintenance Charges)
Interest on Loan

TOTAL

Note 22 Other Income
Miscellaneous Income
Total

Note 23 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Consumption

Note 24 Changes in inventories
(A} Opening Inventory
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Sub Total (A)
(B) Closing Inventory
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 25 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives
Total

Note 26 Finance Cost

Interest Paid

Other Borrowing Cost (Finance Charges)
Total

Note 27 Others Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Rent

Electricity Expenses

Professional Charges

Bank Charges

Conveyance

Filing Fees

General Expenses

Donation

Other Marketing Expenses

Printing & Stationery

Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees

Sundry Debtor Write off

Commission & Brokerage

Total

As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
6,752,420 1,467,788
5,719,978 6,181,378

12,472,398 7,649,166
272,626 :
272,626 -

2,596,409 2,596,409
39,546,250 39,546,250
42,142,659 42,142,659
: 2,596,409
39,818,876 39,546,250
39,818,876 42,142,659
2,323,783 5
623,814 534,778
623,814 534,778
4,650 4,650
60,000
18,000
70,200 553,050
1,150 1,016
1,958 2,188
5,260 13,913
5,404 6,651
6,500 1,514,983
2,387 4,822
5,000 5,000
2,500
1,996,287
365,790
105,009 4,546,350




Y R VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Sth Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Finaricial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032
Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020

Particulars Note As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 60,350 73,577
(b) Intangible 2 - -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 4,256 6,038
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 181,256 181,256
Total Non - Current Assets 245,862 260,871
Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 40,222,469 39,819,361
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 = 1,022
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents T 756,314 901,983
(iii) Other financial assets 8 4,188,768 5,559,523
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 352,927 304,104
(d) Other current assets 10 - s
Total Current Assets 45,520,478 46,585,993
Total Assets 45,766,340 46,846,864
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 100,000 100,000
(b) Other Equity 12 20,699,781 17,655,707
Total equity 20,799,781 17,755,707
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 1,726,604 3,624,627
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 861,589 765,177
Total non-current liabilities 2,588,193 4,389,804
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 1,885,525 7,192,817
(ii) Trade and other payables 16
outstanding to micro enterprises & small = &
enterprises;
outstanding to other than micro - -
enterprises & small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 19,732,841 16,793,536
(b) Other current liabilities 18 - =
(c) Provisions 19 760,000 715,000
Total Current Liabilities 22,378,366 24,701,353
Total liabilities 24,966,559 29,091,157
Total Equity & Liabilities 45,766,340 46,846,864
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants BAHUBALLTIE,UP PVT. LTD|
\Aw/ GV — pd2
Vineet Kheten Diéreartor|
Proprietor BAHUBALI TIE UR PVT. LTD.
Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001. Director
Date: [4[07[2020 Director




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars Note As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 4,916,459 4,397,016
Other income 21 - 10,800
Total Revenue 4,916,459 4,407,816
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 403,108 1,971,499
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (403,108) (1,971,499)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 40,013 34,262
Finance costs 24 594,890 793,827
Other expenses 25 452,596 301,355
Total expenses 1,087,499 1,129,444
Profit before tax 3,828,960 3,278,372
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 760,000 715,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 23,104 5,284
- Deferred Tax 1,782 (6,038)
Total tax expense 784,886 714,246
Profit after tax 3,044,074 2,564,126
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - =
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans = =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,044,074 2,564,126
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 3,044,074 2,564,12¢/
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000 10,9(]0
Basic earnings per share 304.41 256.41
Diluted earnings per share 304.41 256.41

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

ViR

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: |4[6}[2026

For and on behalf of the Board
BAHUBALI TIE UP/?VT. LTD.
7 -

-
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Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

i

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

DATE: |4[07]26020

BAHUBALITIE l}f’ PVT

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2020 31st March,2019
(Amount in °) (Amount in °)
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3,828,960 3,278,372
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation 40,013 34,262
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 96,412 18,091
Interest Paid 498,478 634,903 775,736 828,089
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 4,463,863 4,106,461
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (107,006) (671,014)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 1,022 (10)
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances 1,370,755 (2,112,311)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables - (161,351)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 3,726,992 14,070,638
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities - 4,991,763 - 11,125,952
Cash generated from operations 9,455,626 15,232,413
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 786,928 636,285
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 8,668,698 14,596,128
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 8,668,698 14,596,128
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (26,786) (19,531)
Net cash from investing activities (26,786 (19,531)
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (5,307,292) (9,466,976)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (2,654,378) (2,405,454)
Interest Paid (825,912) (8,787,582) (2,079,219) (13,951,649)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (8,787,582) (13,951,649
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (145,670) 624,948
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 901,983 467,072
756,314 1,092,021
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 726,955 865,943
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 29,359 36,040
756,314 901,983
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants , LTD.

L -

Directobirector
BAHUBALI TIE UR PVT. LTD.

Director

Director




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements as on 31.03.2020

Note 1 & 2 - Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31.03.2020

) (1) Tangible (1) Tanglbls )
Particulars , z Data Processing Total (2) Intangible
Office Equipment
Items
Gross carrying amount
Deemed cost as at 01.04.18 102,000 102,000
Additions - 19,531 19,531
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 - 121,531 121,531
Additions 26,786 - 26,786
Disposals = - =
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.20 26,786 121,531 148,317
Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.18 13,692
Depreciation charge during the year 34,262
Disposals =
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 47,954
Depreciation charge during the year 40,013
Disposals =
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20 87,967
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 73,577.00
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20 60,350.00




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets 4,256 6,038

TOTAL 4,256 6,038

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits 181,256 181,256

TOTAL 181,256 181,256

Note 5 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

Work in Progress 11,747,194 11,344,086
Finished Goods 28,475,275 28,475,275
Total Inventories 40,222,469 39,819,361

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)

Trade receivables - 1,022
Receivables from related parties - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts = =

- 1,022

All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not require any provision or allowance
for doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 726,955 865,943
(b ) Cash in hand 29,359 36,040
(c) Cheques, drafts on hand = =
(d ) Others

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 756,314 901,983

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good) 4,188,768 5,559,523

TOTAL 4,188,768 5,559,523

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS 352,927 304,104

TOTAL 352,927 304,104

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances » " R

TOTAL - -




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
Note 11 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 20,000 20,000

Total Amount 200,000 200,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000

Total Amount 100,000 100,000

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000 10,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 9,800 9,800
Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 9,800 9,800

Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%

* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty &
Infrastructure Ltd
g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares -
Total Amount -

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements as on
Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loan from Bank
The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under
inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is
repayable in 96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl. interest)
starting from 05.11.13 and last installment falling due on 05.10.21. The
rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits
Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties
From other than Related Parties
From NBFC
From Others
Total

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above

Total

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturity of long term debt

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Advances from other

Other payable

Statutory Liabilities

Total

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

17,655,707 15,091,581
3,044,074 2,564,126
20,699,781 17,655,707
20,699,781 17,655,707
1,726,604 3,624,627
1,726,604 3,624,627
861,589 765,177
861,589 765,177
302,745 6,799,036
1,582,780 393,781
1,885,525 7,192,817
1,904,609 2,660,964
30,602 61,934
17,500,000 13,700,000
209,284 192,874
88,346 177,764
19,732,841 16,793,536




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements as on
Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others
Total

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax
Total

As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

760,000 715,000

760,000 715,000
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Rental & Other Charges
TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Interest Income
Miscellanoues Income
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses

Interest Paid

Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished Goods
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (A)

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods
Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund

Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Finance Charges

Total

Note 25 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes

Filing Fees

Repairs & Maintenance
Conveyance Expenses
Insurance Charges
Printing & Stationary
Miscellaneous Expenses
Professional Charges
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees
Total

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

4,916,459 4,397,016
4,916,459 4,397,016
: 10,800

- 10,800
107,006 671,014
296,102 1,300,485
403,108 1,971,499
11,344,086 9,372,587
28,475,275 28,475,275
39,819,361 37,847,862
11,747,194 11,344,086
28,475,275 28,475,275
40,222,469 39,819,361
(403,108) (1,971,499)
498,478 775,736
96,412 18,091
594,890 793,827
4,650 4,650
2,500 2,566
437,868 253,405

. 1,173

: 21,240

- 10,178

2,578 1,993

» 1,150

5,000 5,000
452,596 301,355




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5th Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
QOpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
reguirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flows and the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014:

Page 4 of 8



i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No, 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020
UDIN: 20060270AAAAETS632
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

S

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 200602 70AAAAETS632
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE
LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

1. a)

c)

b)

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets; hence
the clause is not applicable.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

%) The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

Hence clause is not applicable.

4.) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information

and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees

or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5:) The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of

India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.
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7.)

8.)

10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

14.)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has

neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.
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15.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.

16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

W

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 20060270AAAAETS5632
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Baron Suppliers Private Limited
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC105030

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

Particulars Note As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3} 23,620 56,008
(b) Intangible 2 - -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 11,581 6,289
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 180,125 180,125
Total Non - Current Assets 215,326 242,422
Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 42,660,679 41,713,011
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 - 21,788
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 641,886 747,732
(iii) Other financial assets 8 - -
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 352,939 304,104
(d) Other current assets 10 - -
Total Current Assets 43,655,504 42,786,635
Total Assets 43,870,830 43,029,057
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 100,000 100,000
(b) Other Equity 12 19,640,103 16,486,173
Total equity 19,740,103 16,586,173
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 13 1,726,604 3,624,627
(i) Other financial liabilities 14 2,154,498 2,083,543
Total non-current liabilities 3,881,102 5,708,170
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 10,443,082 15,225,704
(ii) Trade and other payables 16 - -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 9,046,543 4,959,010
(b) Other current liabilities 18 - -
(c) Provisions 19 760,000 550,000
Total Current Liabilities 20,249,625 20,734,714
Total liabilities 24,130,727 26,442,884
Total Equity & Liabilities 43,870,830 43,029,057

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vil

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: 14[0%(202.0

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behlaf of the Board

BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD
—

Director
Director




*|Baron Suppliers Private Limited
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

Particulars Note| Year ended 31.03.20 | Year ended 31.03.19
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 4,916,459 4,397,016
Other income 21 - 10,800
Total Revenue 4,916,459 4,407,816
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 947,668 1,959,568
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (947,668) (1,959,568)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 32,388 32,300
Finance costs 24 569,433 1,008,886
Other expenses 25 300,897 274,616
Total expenses 902,718 1,315,802
Profit before tax 4,013,741 3,092,014
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 760,000 550,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 105,104 4,634
- Deferred Tax (5,293) (6,289)
Total tax expense 859,811 548,345
Profit after tax 3,153,930 2,543,669
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,153,930 2,543,669
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 3,153,930 2,543,669
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000 10,000
Basic earnings per share 315.38 254.37
Diluted earnings per share 315.39 254.37

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001.
Date: |4[0% |202.0

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behlaf of the Board
BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD-

Director

Director

BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Cosli Blowi Siatariant For the year ended For the year ended
31st March,2020 31st March,2019
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 4,013,741 3,092,014
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation 32,388 32,300
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 70,955 233,150
Interest Paid 498,478 601,821 775,736 1,041,186
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 4,615,562 4,133,200
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (107,006) (671,014)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 21,788 (9)
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances = &
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets - 27,671
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables - (67,145)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 4,875,220 1,236,394
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities - 4,790,002 - 525,897
Cash generated from operations 9,405,564 4,659,097
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 703,940 643,635
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 8,701,624 4,015,462
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 8,701,624 4,015,462
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets - -
Net cash from investing activities E -
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (4,782,622) 687,518
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (2,654,378) (2,405,454)
Interest Paid (1,370,470) (8,807,470) (2,067,288) (3,785,224)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (8,807,470) (3,785,224)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (105,846) 230,238
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 747,732 517,494
641,886 747,731
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 600,003 689,199
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 41,883 58,533
641,886 747,732

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

S

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: {4[GF 2020

For and on behlaf of the Board

BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD
Pl 2

Directot
Director

BARON SUPPLIER! .;F\ -
|
)




Baron Suppliers Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Notes to the financial statements as on 31.03.2020

Note 1 & 2 - Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars

(1) Tangible
Office Equipment

(2) Intangible

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.17

Additions 102,000
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.18 102,000
Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 102,000
Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.18 13,692
Depreciation charge during the year 32,300
Disposals =
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 45,992
Depreciation charge during the year 32,388
Disposals -
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20 78,380
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 56,008

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20

23,620




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets
TOTAL

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits
TOTAL

Note 5 Inventories

(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in Progress
Finished Goods

Total Inventories

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables

Receivables from related parties

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Note: All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does
not require any provision or allowance for doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)
(b) Cashin hand

(c) Cheques, drafts on hand

(d ) Others

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good)
TOTAL

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax and TDS

TOTAL

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances
TOTAL

As at 31.03.2020

As at 31.03.19

11,581 6,289
11,581 6,289
180,125 180,125
180,125 180,125
15,312,164 14,364,496
27,348,515 27,348,515
42,660,679 41,713,011
- 21,788

E 21,788

600,003 689,199
41,883 58,533
641,886 747,732
352,939 304,104
352,939 304,104




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.2020

Note 11 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital

As at 31.03.19

Number of Shares 20,000 20,000
Total Amount 200,000 200,000
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000
Total Amount 100,000 100,000
c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000 10,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 9,800 9,800
Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares

will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion

to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 9,800

Percentage of total shares held 98.00%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *

Number of Shares 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *

Number of Shares 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00%

9,800
98.00%

100
1.00%

100
1.00%

* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares
Total Amount

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US51109WB2005PTC105030

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.2020

Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

As at 31.03.19

As at the beginning of the year 16,486,173 13,942,504
Add: Profit for the year 3,153,930 2,543,669
Add: Ind AS Adjustments = 5

As at the end of the year 19,640,103 16,486,173
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income - 2

Other items of Other Comprehensive Income = =
Total 19,640,103 16,486,173
Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)

Secured - at amortised cost

Term Loan from Bank 1,726,604 3,624,627

The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under

inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is repayable in

96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl. interest) starting from

05.11.13 and last installment falling due on 05.10.21. The rate of interest is

Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Total non-current borrowings 1,726,604 3,624,627
Note 14 Financial Liability {Other Financial Liability)

Security Deposits 2,154,498 2,083,543
Total 2,154,498 2,083,543
Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)

From other than Related Parties

From NBFC 8,892,372 12,479,863

From Others 1,550,710 2,745,841
Total 10,443,082 15,225,704
Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises - -
Other than above - -
Total - -
Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturity of long term debt 1,904,609 2,660,964
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 30,602 61,934
Advances from other 6,877,878 1,986,368
Other payable 71,953 73,953
Statutory Liabilities 161,501 175,791
Total 4,959,010

9,046,543



Baron Suppliers Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.2020

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others E

As at 31.03.19

Total -

Note 19 Provisions
- Provision for Income Tax 760,000

550,000

Total 760,000

550,000




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Rental & Other Charges

As at 31.03.2020

As at 31.03.2019

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Interest Income
Miscellanoues Income

Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Interest Paid

Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress &
Finished Goods

Opening Inventory of Work in Progress

Opening Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (A)

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund

Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Finance Charges

Total

Note 25 Others Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Filing Fees

Miscellaneous Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance

Legal / Professional Charges

Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees

Total

4,916,459 4,397,016
4,916,459 4,397,016
. 10,800

. 10,800
107,006 671,014
840,662 1,288,554
947,668 1,959,568
14,364,496 12,404,928
27,348,515 27,348,515
41,713,011 39,753,443
15,312,164 14,364,496
27,348,515 27,348,515
42,660,679 41,713,011
(947,668) (1,959,568)
498,478 775,736
70,955 233,150
569,433 1,008,886
4,650 4,650
2,000 2,500
12,757 2,596
272,400 237,770
4,090 22,100
5,000 5,000
300,897 274,616




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5th Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
HEADMAN MERCANTILE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HEADMAN MERCANTILE PRIVATE
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flowsand the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014:
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable

losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The

question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

I
CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020
UDIN: 20060270AAAAEV2172
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of HEADMAN MERCANTILE
PRIVATE LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

1.

2)

4.)

6.)

7.)

The company does not have any fixed assets hence the clause is not applicable.

a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

b) In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

c) On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
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8.)

9.)

10.)

171.)

12.)

13.)

14.)

15.)

outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.
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16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

fy”

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 20060270AAAAEV2172
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Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020

Particulars Note |Asat31.03.2020] Asat31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 - -
(b) Intangible 2 - -
{c) Deferred Tax 3
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 172,796 172,796
Total Non - Current Assets 172,796 172,796
Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 35,169,912 36,843,996
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 - 669
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 489,035 864,481
(iii) Other financial assets 8 4 -
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 289,167 249,156
(d) Other current assets 10 - -
Total Current Assets 35,948,114 37,958,302
Total Assets 36,120,910 38,131,098
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 100,100 100,100
(b) Other Equity 12 16,756,223 14,222,337
Total equity 16,856,323 14,322,437
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 1,726,604 3,624,627
(i) Other financial liabilities 14 1,765,132 1,707,000
Total non-current liabilities 3,491,736 5,331,627
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 12,631,442 11,324,109
(ii) Trade and other payables 16 - -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 2,471,408 3,676,461
(b) Other current liabilities 18 - 2,956,464
(c) Provisions 19 670,000 520,000
Total Current Liabilities 15,772,850 18,477,034
Total liabilities 19,264,586 23,808,661
Total Equity & Liabilities 36,120,910 38,131,098
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD
- B
Vineet Kheten Dire BfrECtO i
Proprietor HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD.
Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.
Date: | 4 | 0# 2020




Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

As at 31.03.2020

As at 31.03.2019

Particulars Note
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 6,984,407 3,602,376
Other income 73 - -
Total Revenue 6,984,407 3,602,376
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 930,316 1,638,428
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 1,674,084 (1,638,428)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 - -
Finance costs 24 623,623 816,093
Other expenses 25 493,554 28,766
Total expenses 3,721,577 844,859
Profit before tax 3,262,830 2,757,517
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 670,000 520,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 58,944 (4,714)
Total tax expense 728,944 515,286
Profit after tax 2,533,886 2,242,231
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax "
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,533,886 2,242,231
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 2,533,886 2,242,231
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,010 10,010
Basic earnings per share 253.14 224.00
Diluted earnings per share 253.14 224.00

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

M

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: | 4 [0F [202.0

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD.

HEADMAN MERCANT] E PVT. LTD.

Director

o oy

Director Director




Headman Mercantile Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2020 31st March,2019
(Amountin ) (Amountin ')
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3,262,830 2,757,517
Adjustments for
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 58,132 40,357
Interest Paid 563,742 621,874 775,736 816,093
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 3,884,704 3,573,610
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 2,497,394 (671,014)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 669 7
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances - -
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Financial Assets - -
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets - =
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables - (6,000)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities (482,631) (777,536)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities (2,956,464) (941,032) 2,656,464 1,201,921
Cash generated from operations 2,943,672 4,775,531
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Ne 618,953 488,286
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 2,324,719 4,287,245
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 2,324,719 4,287,245
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets - -
Net cash from investing activities - -
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 1,307,333 6,107
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (2,654,378) (2,405,454)
Interest Paid (1,353,120) (2,700,165) (1,746,148) (4,145,495)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (2,700,165) (4,145,495)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) (375,446) 141,750
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 864,481 122,731
489,035 864,481
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 450,692 807,461
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 38,343 57,020
489,035 864,481

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

VL2

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

DATE: 14 [0F[2026

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT, LTD,
P~ |

Director Director

HEADMAN MERCANTILE FVI

Director Director

wl ——



Headman Mercantile Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Notes to the financial statements as on 31.03.2020

Note 1 & 2 - Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars

(1) Tangible

2) Int ibl
Office Equipment (2) Intangible

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.18

Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19

Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.20

Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.18

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20




Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets = -
TOTAL = -

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits 172,796 172,796
TOTAL 172,796 172,796

Note 5 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

Work in Progress 10,764,912 9,834,596
Finished Goods 24,405,000 27,009,400
Total Inventories 35,169,912 36,843,996

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)

Trade receivables = 669
Receivables from related parties = =
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -

. 663

All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not require any provision or allowance for
doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 450,692 807,461
(b )} Cash in hand 38,343 57,020
(c) Cheques, drafts on hand - -
(d ) Others

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 489,035 864,481

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good) B =

TOTAL s -

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax and TDS 289,167 249,156
TOTAL 289,167 249,156

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances 3 -
TOTAL £ =




Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

Note 11 Equity Share Capital

(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 20,000 20,000
Total Amount 200,000 200,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,010 10,010
Total Amount 100,100 100,100

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,100 10,100
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 9,810 9,810
Percentage of total shares held 97.13% 97.13%
) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of

dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the
company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

f) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 9,810 9,810

Percentage of total shares held 97.13% 97.13%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 0.99% 0.99%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 0.99% 0.99%

* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty &
Infrastructure Ltd

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.

Number of Shares 2

Total Amount -
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from

shareholders within the period of 5 years

No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104540

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loan from Bank

The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under
inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is
repayable in 96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl.
interest) starting from 05.11.13 and last installment falling due on
05.10.21. The rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits
Advance from parties

Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties
From other than Related Parties
From NBFC
From Others
Total

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above

Total

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturity of long term debt

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Advances from other
Other payable
Statutory Liabilities
Total

As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
14,222,337 11,980,106
2,533,886 2,242,231
16,756,223 14,222,337
16,756,223 14,222,337
1,726,604 3,624,627
1,726,604 3,624,627
1,765,132 1,707,000
1,765,132 1,707,000
4,584,099 11,307,930
8,047,343 16,179
12,631,442 11,324,109
1,904,609 2,660,964
95,866 61,934
107,006 799,408
279,391 5,000
84,535 149,155
2,471,407 3,676,461




Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others - 2,956,464

Total % 2,956,464

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax 670,000 520,000

Total 670,000 520,000




Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Rental Income
Sales Consideration

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Interest Income
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses

Interest Paid

Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished
Goods
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods
Sub Total (A)

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods
Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund

Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Finance Charges

Total

Note 25 Others Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Filing Fees

Repairs & Maintenance

Professional Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

Interest Penalty charges

Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees

Total

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

4,027,943 3,602,376
2,956,464
6,984,407 3,602,376
107,006 671,014
823,310 967,414
930,316 1,638,428
9,834,596 8,196,168
27,009,400 27,009,400
36,843,996 35,205,568
10,764,912 9,834,596
24,405,000 27,009,400
35,169,912 36,843,996
1,674,084 (1,638,428)
563,742 775,736
58,132 40,357
1,749 =
623,623 816,093
4,650 4,650
2,250 2,747
457,936 12,638
5,600 2,100
18,118 1,631
5,000 5,000
493,554 28,766




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5th Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
IKASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Qpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Page 1 of 8




Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company

as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flowsand the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014:
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the guestion of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
guestion of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020
UDIN: 20060270AAAAEW1917
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE
LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

1)

2.)

4.)

5.)

7.)

The company does not have any fixed assets hence the clause is not applicable.

a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

b) In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

) On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
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8.)

10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

14.)

15))

outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any

outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.
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16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

K

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 20060270AAAAEW1917
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Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited

1st Eloor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105031

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020

Particulars My As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 = -
(b) Intangible 2 . -
(d) Deferred Tax Assets 3 - -
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 180,125 180,125
Total Non - Current Assets 180,125 180,125
Current assets
{(a) Inventories 5 40,915,469 39,885,842
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 - 5,240
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 593,381 741,285
(iii) Other financial assets 8 % =
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 352,937 304,104
(d) Other current assets 10 = =
Total Current Assets 41,861,787 40,936,471
Total Assets 42,041,912 41,116,596
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 100,000 100,000
(b) Other Equity 12 19,653,583 16,478,580
Total equity 19,753,583 16,578,580
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 1,726,604 3,624,627
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 2,154,498 2,083,543
Total non-current liabilities 3,881,102 5,708,170
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 12,307,303 13,978,609
(i) Trade and other payables 16 - -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 5,339,925 4,301,237
(b) Other current liabilities 18 - -
(c) Provisions 19 760,000 550,000
Total Current Liabilities 18,407,228 18,829,846
Total liabilities 22,288,330 24,538,016
Total Equity & Liabilities 42,041,912 41,116,596

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vineet Ki%\

Proprietor

Membership No.060270

Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: 14]0"1’ |2_0?,o

Forang REFURRIMAZFe PV T, LTD
el

Director Director

KASTURI TIE 9P PVT. LTD

" “ Director
Director




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC105031

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars Note | Year ended 31.03.20 Year ended 31.03.19
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 4,916,459 4,397,016
Other income 21 - 3,623
Total Revenue 4,916,459 4,400,639
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 1,029,627 1,824,923
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (1,029,627) (1,824,923)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 - -
Finance costs 24 586,094 1,008,886
Other expenses 25 281,258 258,304
Total expenses 867,352 1,267,190
Profit before tax 4,049,107 3,133,449
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 760,000 550,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 114,104 6,114
Total tax expense 874,104 556,114
Profit after tax 3,175,003 2,577,335
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss E
Iitems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,175,003 2,577,335
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 3,175,003 2,577,335
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000 10,000
Basic earnings per share 317.50 257.73
Diluted earnings per share 317.50 257.73

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

Chartered AC::.L?;V':S

Vineet Kheten
Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: ]4(0'”)-0119

For and behglhofthe RgafdE 9P PVT. LTD

P 2

Director

Director

KASTURI TIE UP PVT. LTD

=3

-

irector

Director




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended
31st March,2020
(Amountin ')

For the year ended
31st March,2019
(Amount in °)

A. Cash flow from operating activities :

Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 4,049,107 3,133,449
Adjustments for

Notional Interest on Security Deposits 70,955 233,150

Interest Paid 514,007 584,962 775,736 1,008,886
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 4,634,069 4,142,335

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (107,006) (671,014)

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 5,240 (9)

(Increase) / Decrease of Advances - -

(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets - -

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables - (67,145)

Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 1,810,846 589,091

Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities - 1,709,080 - (149,077)
Cash generated from operations 6,343,149 3,993,258

Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 712,937 643,114
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 5,630,212 3,350,144
Net cash Generated/{used) from operating activities 5,630,212 3,350,144

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets % s
Net cash from investing activities = T
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (1,671,306) 1,232,241
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (2,654,378) (2,405,454)
Interest Paid (1,452,431) (5,778,115) (1,932,643) (3,105,856)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (5,778,115) (3,105,856)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (147,903) 244,288
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 741,285 496,998
593,382 741,285
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 560,614 690,817
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 32,768 50,468
593,382 741,285

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vineet K\h/e%-n

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001.
The 14th day of July 2020

Ferand %Rﬁffﬁﬁfg?}m PVT. LTD
/ = M_

Director

Director

KASTURI TIE UP\PVT. LTD

Director

Director




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105031

Notes to the financial statements as on 31.03.2020

Note 1 & 2 - Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars

(1) Tangible

2) Intangible
Office Equipment 2y Intang:

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.18

Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19

Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.20

Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.18

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC105031

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets 5

As at 31.03.19

TOTAL

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits 180,125 180,125
TOTAL 180,125 180,125
Note 5 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

Work in Progress 15,483,144 14,453,517
Finished Goods 25,432,325 25,432,325
Total Inventories 40,915,469 39,885,842
Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables E 5,240
Receivables from related parties = -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
TOTAL - 5,240
All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not
require any provision or allowance for doubtful debts
Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 560,614 690,817
(b ) Cash in hand 32,767 50,468
(c) Cheques, drafts on hand - -
(d ) Others
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 593,381 741,285
Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)

Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good) - -
TOTAL - -
Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS 352,937 304,104
TOTAL 352,937 304,104

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances =

TOTAL -




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105031

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

Note 11 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital

Number of Shares 20,000 20,000
Total Amount 200,000 200,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000
Total Amount 100,000 100,000

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000 10,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000
Percentage of total shares held 100.00% 100.00%
e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the

holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 9,800 9,800

Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%

* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares -
Total Amount -
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: US1109WB2005PTC105031

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loan from Bank

The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under
inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is repayable
in 96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl. interest) starting from
05.11.13 and last installment falling due on 05.10.21. The rate of interest is

Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits
Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties
From other than Related Parties
From NBFC
From Others
Total

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above

Total

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturity of long term debt

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Advances from other

Other payable

Statutory Liabilities

Total

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

16,478,580 13,501,245
3,175,003 2,577,335
19,653,583 16,478,580
19,653,583 16,478,580
1,726,604 3,624,627
1,726,604 3,624,627
2,154,498 2,083,543
2,154,498 2,083,543
12,307,303 11,372,528
- 2,606,081
12,307,303 13,978,609
1,904,609 2,660,964
46,131 61,934
3,147,878 1,340,872
75,442 75,142
165,865 162,325
5,339,925 4,301,237




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105031

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others
Total

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax
Total

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

760,000

550,000

760,000

550,000




Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Rental & Other Charges

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Sundry Balances written back (net)

Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Interest Paid

Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished Goods
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (A)

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund

Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Finance Charges

Total

Note 25 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes
Miscellaneous Expenses
Filing Fees
Repairs & Maintenance
Professional Charges
Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees

Total

4,916,459 4,397,016
4,916,459 4,397,016
- 3,623
- 3,623
107,006 671,014
922,621 1,153,909
1,029,627 1,824,923
14,453,517 12,628,594
25,432,325 25,432,325
39,885,842 38,060,919
15,483,144 14,453,517
25,432,325 25,432,325
40,915,469 39,885,842
(1,029,627) (1,824,923)
514,007 775,736
70,955 233,150
1,132 -
586,094 1,008,886
4,650 4,650
10,947 1,286
2,650 2,498
250,211 237,770
7,800 7,100
5,000 5,000
281,258 258,304




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5th Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis

for our audit opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company

as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board'’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flows and the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the pla nned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014:
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

s

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 200602 70AAAAEYE551
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE
LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

1. a)

b)

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets; hence
the clause is not applicable.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its

business.

On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification, The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

3.) The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

Hence clause is not applicable.

4.) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5:) The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.
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6.)

8.)

9.

10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

14.)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has

neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.
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15.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

Hence clause is not applicable.

16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

Q\J//

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 20060270AAAAEYE551
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Triton Commercial Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548
Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020
Particulars Note As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 23,620 56,008
(b) Intangible 2 - -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 10,145 4,599
{c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 180,125 180,125
Total Non - Current Assets 213,890 240,732
Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 37,545,352 36,748,742
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 - 1,024
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents g 878,864 736,967
(iif) Other financial assets 8 % -
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 352,927 304,104
(d) Other current assets 10 - -
Total Current Assets 38,777,143 37,790,837
Total Assets 38,991,033 38,031,569
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 17 100,000 100,000
(b) Other Equity 12 20,825,860 17,587,951
Total equity 20,925,860 17,687,951
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 1,726,604 3,624,627
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 861,589 765,177
Total non-current liabilities 2,588,193 4,389,804
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 8,856,352 8,803,555
(ii) Trade and other payables 16 - -
(iif) Other financial liabilities 17 5,860,627 6,440,258
(b) Other current liabilities 18 - -
(c) Provisions 19 760,000 710,000
Total Current Liabilities 15,476,979 15,953,813
Total liabilities 18,065,172 20,343,617
Total Equity & Liabilities 38,991,033 38,031,569
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Board
Chartered W'aants TRITON COMMERCIA PVT. LTE
i Gt o
Vmee't Kheten e ) ?:‘\Mr Director
Proprietor
Membership No.060270 ; TRITON COMMERCIAL\PVT,LTD
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street f
Kolkata - 700 001.
Date: |4 '0'?[- (2020 Directo




Triton Commercial Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars Note |Year ended 31.03.2020| Year ended 31.03.19
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 4,916,459 4,397,016
Other income 21 - -
Total Revenue 4,916,459 4,397,016
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 796,610 1,420,871
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (796,610) (1,420,871)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 32,388 32,300
Finance costs 24 594,890 861,360
Other expenses 25 273,214 259,128
Total expenses 900,492 1,152,788
Profit before tax 4,015,967 3,244,228
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 760,000 710,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 23,604 10,980
- Deferred Tax (5,546) (4,599)
Total tax expense 778,058 716,381
Profit after tax 3,237,909 2,527,847
Other comprehensive income
Iltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income -
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax =
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,237,909 2,527,847
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 3,237,909 2,527,847
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000 10,000
Basic earnings per share 323.79 252.78
Diluted earnings per share 323.79 252.78
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD
N\ peff ¥~
Vineet Kheten /s Director Director
Proprietor ' TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD
Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001. Director
Date: |4 0#{2020 Director




Triton Commercial Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended
31st March,2020

For the year ended
31st March,2019

{Amountin ) (Amountin )
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 4,015,967 3,244,228
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation 32,388 32,300
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 96,412 85,624
Interest Paid 498,478 627,278 775,736 893,660
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 4,643,245 4,137,888
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (107,008) (671,014)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 1,024 (9)
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances - -
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables - (6,000)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 208,056 102,074 1,614,055 937,032
Cash generated from operations 4,745,319 5,074,920
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 782,427 637,544
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 3,962,892 4,437,376
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 3,962,892 4,437,376
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets - e
Net cash from investing activities - .
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 52,797 (259,913)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (2,654,378) (2,405,454)
Interest Paid (1,219,414) (3,820,995) (1,528,591) (4,193,958)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (3,820,995) (4,193,958)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 141,897 243,418
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 736,967 493,549
878,864 736,967
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 847,980 697,383
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 30,884 39,584
878,864 736,967

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

W

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

DATE: 14| 0#12020

For and behalf of the Board ]
TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD

e~ 1)
DirectoPirector
TRITON COMMERCIAY, P\T. LTD

Director




Triton Commercial Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

Notes to the financial statements as on 31.03.2020

Note 1 & 2 - Property, Plant and Equipment For the year ended 31.03.2020
Particulars Off:cl: -;:::;l:lim Total (2) Intangible
Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.18 -
Additions 102,000 102,000
Disposals E 5

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 102,000 102,000
Additions -
Disposals ~

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.20 102,000 102,000
Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.18 13,6592 13,652
Depreciation charge during the year 32,300 32,300
Disposals -

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 45,992 45,992
Depreciation charge during the year 32,388 32,388
Disposals - -

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20 78,380 78,380

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 56,008 56,008

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20 23,620 23,620




Triton Commercial Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets
TOTAL

Note 4 Financial Assets {Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits

TOTAL

Note 5 Inventories

(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in Progress

Finished Goods

Total Inventories

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables

Receivables from related parties

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.19
10,145 4,599
10,145 4,599
180,125 180,125
180,125 180,125
9,885,075 9,088,465
27,660,277 27,660,277
37,545,352 36,748,742

= 1,024

- 1,024

All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not require any provision or allowance for doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)

(b ) Cash in hand

(c) Cheques, drafts on hand

(d ) Others

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good)
TOTAL

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax and TDS

TOTAL

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances
TOTAL

847,980 697,383
30,884 39,584
878,864 736,967
352,927 304,104
352,927 304,104




Triton Commercial Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.19
Note 11 Equity Share Capital
{Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 20,000 20,000
Total Amount 200,000 200,000
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000
Total Amount 100,000 100,000
c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000 10,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000
Percentage of total shares held 100.00% 100.00%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to ¢
dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensui
liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution

in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
f) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 9,800

Percentage of total shares held 98.00%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *

Number of Shares 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *

Number of Shares 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00%

9,800
98.00%

100
1.00%

100
1.00%

* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty & Infrastructure

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares
Total Amount
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 vears
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




Triton Commercial Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loan from Bank
The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under
inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is repayable in
96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl. interest) starting from
05.11.13 and last instaliment falling due on 05.10.21. The rate of interest is
Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits
Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties
From other than Related Parties
From NBFC
From Others
Total

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above

Total

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturity of long term debt

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Advances from other

Other payable

Statutory Liabilities

Total

As at 31.03.2020

As at 31.03.19

17,587,951 15,060,104
3,237,909 2,527,847
20,825,860 17,587,951
20,825,860 17,587,951
1,726,604 3,624,627
1,726,604 3,624,627
861,589 765,177
861,589 765,177
8,856,352 8,657,172

g 146,383

8,856,352 8,803,555
1,904,609 2,660,964
30,602 61,934
3,707,008 3,521,488
74,253 73,953
144,155 121,919
5,860,627 6,440,258




Triton Commercial Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

fi ial stat
Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.19

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others -

Total = &

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax 760,000 710,000

Total 760,000 710,000




CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548
Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations

As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

Rental Income 4,916,459 4,397,016
Sales
TOTAL 4,916,459 4,397,016
Note 21 Other Income
Interest Income = =
Total - -
Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses 107,006 671,014
Interest Paid 689,604 749,857
Consumption 796,610 1,420,871
Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished Goods
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress 9,088,465 7,667,594
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods 27,660,277 27,660,277
Sub Total (A) 36,748,742 35,327,871
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress 9,885,075 9,088,465
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods 27,660,277 27,660,277
Sub Total (B) 37,545,352 36,748,742
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B) (796,610) (1,420,871)
Note 24 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund 498,478 775,736
Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 96,412 85,624
Finance Charges K
Total 594,890 861,360
Note 25 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes 4,650 4,650
Filing Fees 2,250 2,498
Repairs & Maintenance 246,006 237,770
Professional Charges 7,100 7,100
Miscellaneous Expenses 8,208 2,110
Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees 5,000 5,000
Total 273,214 259,128




S VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5th Floor, Room No. © 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 8331040655, Ph ' (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDZPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEIVIBERS OF RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Raj Construction Projects Private
Limited, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in

Equity for the year then ended on that date, including a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its Profit (including other
comprehensive income), Changes in Equity and Cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SA’s) section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
iKey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it

is an unlistea company.

Information other than the Ind AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The Company's board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but

toes not include the Ind AS financial statements and o ~s v theresin . ihsag ety

intarmation 15 expected to be rmade available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for sne resulting from errci, as fraud may invoive

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

/

#
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such

checks of the books and records as we considered appropriate and according to the information and

explanations given to us, we set out a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of

the Order, to the extent applicable.

1, a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items which considering the
size and nature of operations of the company appears tc be reasonable. Pursuant to such
program, no material discrepancies between book records and physical inventory have
been noticed on physical verification.
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6.)

7.)

c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and
have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

a) The company has granted unsecured loans to company covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. The terms and conditions of the
grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

b) There is no stipulation regarding recovery of loans as these loans are repayable on
demand. The aforesaid loans being repayable on demand, there is no amount
overdue for mare than ninety days in respect of recovery of principal and interest of

the above loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been
complied with in respect of loans, investments guarantees and securities given by the Company.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act
2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
sovernment under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company does not have any outstanding from any banks, financial institutions
or government nor has it any outstanding debenture; hence the clause is not applicable.

In our opimoi, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was no
money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and the term lean has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for which they were
obtained.
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10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

14.)

15.)

16.)

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by
the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel during
the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has complied with the requirements of sections 177 and 188 of
the Act with respect to its transactions with the related parties. Pursuant to the requirement of
the applicable Accounting Standard, details of the related party transactions have been
disclosed in Note 35 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year under audit,

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence
clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

3. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income) and the Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

4. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.
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6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in Annexure A.

7. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act;

8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

() The company does not have any pending litigation.

(b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

o

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020
UDIN: 20060270AAAAEZ7668
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Raj Construction Projects

Private Limited as of 31! March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the

Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

" The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

ivieaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company.

iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31% March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

4

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 20060270AAAAEZ7668
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Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020

Particulars Note| Asat31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 3,016,793 3,747,612
(b) Intrangible 2A < -
(¢) Financial Assets
{i) Investment 3 31,125,000 31,125,000
(ii) Other Financial Assets 4 108,097 108,097
(d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 77,318 709,435
Total Non - Current Assets 34,327,208 35,690,144
Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 31,748,388 31,157,088
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 629,864 1,354,815
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,508,550 3,924,407
(iii) Other financial assets 9 181,671,142 164,686,218
{c) Current Tax Assets 10 1,436,613 1,763,823
(d} Other current assets 11 75,621 70,109
Total Current Assets 219,070,218 202,956,460
Total Assets _ 253,397,426 238,646,604
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 18,544,500 18,544,500
(b) Other Equity 13 222,042,039 212,033,258 -/
Total equity 240,586,539 230,577,758
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 i
(iii) Other financial liabilities -
Total non-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 -
(ii) Trade and other payables 16
outstanding to micro enterprises & -
small enterprises;
outstanding to other than micro 120,932 312,710
enterprises & small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 94 836 97,444
(b) Other current liabilities 18 10,195,119 3,101,500
(c) Provisions 19 2,400,000 4,557,192
Total Current Liabilities 12,810,887 8,068,846
Total liabilities 12,810,887 8,068,846
Total Equity & Liabilities 253,397,426 238,646,604
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants J%JQQNSTRUCTlUN“RﬁOJECTE PVT LTD
LV' 2 t \}!\_‘1_:' e “i MO W .,,‘\ .V I
.‘)'i. . \
?"feef:e e RAJ CC?‘IS.’.’-T!;;‘T;-"-;: DO IEATE Dfm_z—d?r
Membership No.060270 P
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street ¥t *!1 P&Q.At t«}: H'.!rt'--J"
Kolkata - 700 001. .y & 3 Director
Date: {4 [orpleos 7 A | n Digactar |




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars Note Year ended 31.03.20 Year ended 31.03.19
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 2,700,945 13,181,223
Other income 2k 14,414,310 15,214,615
Total Revenue 17,115,255 28,395,838
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 591,300 686,311
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & finished goods 23 (591,300) 6,745,340
Employee benefit expense 24 508,246 632,939
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 718,527 721,887
Finance costs 25 - -
Other expenses 26 2,614,451 3,992,535
Total expenses 3,841,224 12,779,012
Profit before tax 13,274,031 15,616,826
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 2,400,000 4,557,192
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 233,133 1,642,140
- Deferred Tax 632,117 (651,189)
Total tax expense 3,265,250 5,548,143
Profit after tax 10,008,781 10,068,683
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - s
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,008,781 10,068,683
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 10,008,781 10,068,683
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 1,854,450 1,854,450
Basic earnings per share 5.40 5.43
Diluted earnings per share 5.40 5.43
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

v

Vineet Khetan

Pronrietor

Membership No.060270

Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: (4{0 | 7020 ]

This is the Statement of profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements
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ij Construction Projects Private Limited
{ Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
N: U70109WB1987PTCO41935

stes to the financial statements as on 31.03.2020

ste 2 Property, Plant and Equipment For the year ended 31.03.2020
Tangible Intangible
irticulars ek - Y
ant urnitures
Co Tot
Land N EHlaiEs —— Vehicles mputer otal Software
ross carrying amount
eemed cost as at 01.04.18 475,086 2,633,010 1,259,356 4,998,400 303,565 9,669,417 29,100
iditions - - - 9,500 9,500 -
sposals 571,181 044,723 - 294,069 1,809,973 29,100
osing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 475,086 2,061,829 314,633 4,998,400 18,996 7,868,944 -
dditions - - - - 17,628 17,628 -
isposals =
losing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.20 475,086 2,061,829 314,633 4,998,400 36,624 7,886,572 -
ccumulated depreciation as at 01.04.18 - 1,743,145 1,077,872 2,066,413 303,459 5,190,889 29,100
epreciation charge during the year 155,873 29,564, 534,348 2,102 721,887 -
isposals - 566,116 931,259 - 294,069 1,791,444 29,100
losing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 - 1,332,902 176,177 2,600,761 11,492 4,121,332 -
epreciation charge during the year - 153,351 22,011 535,812 7,353 718,527 -
isposals = 29,920 -
losing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20 - 1,486,253 198,188 3,166,493 18,845 4,869,779 -
let carrying amount as at 31.03.19 475,086 728,927 138,456 2,397,639 7,504 3,747,612 -
let carrying amount as at 31.03.20 475,086 575,576 116,445 1,831,907 . 12,779 3,016,793 -




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

e

i
"
>

Note 3 Investment

Investment in Equity Instruments (At Cost, fully Paid)

Equity Shares, Unguoted (Face Value Rs.1/- each)

Ritudhan Suppliers Pvt Ltd (Qty - 50,000 Shares) 50,000 50,000
Investment in Partnership Firm
Rituraj Construction LLP
- Capital 50,000 50,000
- Current = =
HPSD Enclave LLP
- Capital 50,000 50,000
- Current 4 4
HPVD Enclave LLP
- Capital 250,000 250,000
- Current 30,725,000 30,725,000
31,125,000 31,125,000
Disclosure of Partnership Firm
Rituraj Construction LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pvt Ltd (50%) 50,000 50,000
e Raj Vardhan Patodia (50%) 50,000 50,000
1 HPSD Enclave LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pvt Ltd (50%)
- Capital 50,000 50,000
- Current "t =
Regent Hirise Private Limited (50%)
- Capital 50,000 50,000
5 - Current (45,000) (45,000)
HPVD Enclave LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pvt Ltd (50%)
- Capital 250,000 250,000
- Current 30,725,000 30,725,000
Regent Hirise Private Limited (50%)
- Capital 250,000 250,000
- Current 30,490,000 30,490,000
Note 4 Financial Assets
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits 108,097 108,097
TOTAL 108,097 108,097
Note 5 Deferred Tax Liability (net)
Deferred Tax Assets
-.0n Fixed Assets 77,318 709,435
Deferred Tax Assets 77,318 709,435




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
Note 6 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Finished Stock 12,476,659 12,476,659
Work in process 19,271,729 18,680,429
Total Inventories 31,748,388 31,157,088
Note 7 Trade receivables
Trade receivables 629,864 1,342,169
Receivables from related parties (holding company) 12,646
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B
629,864 1,354,815
Break up of security details:
Trade receivables
(a) Secured, considered good - -
(b) Unsecured, considered good 629,864 1,354,815
(c) Doubtful - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Total 629,864 1,354,815
Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 3,043,931 3,548,146
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand -
(c ) Cash in hand 464,659 376,261
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 3,508,590 3,924,407
Note 9 Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Loan To Others 178,957,830 162,016,906
Other Advance 2,713.312 2,669,312
TOTAL 181,671,142 164,686,218
Note 10 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS 1,436,613 1,763,823
TOTAL 1,436,613 1,763,823
Note 11 Other current assets
Prepaid Expenses - 49,522
Balance with Statutory Authorities 75,621 20,587
TOTAL 75,621 70,109




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19

Note 12 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 2,000,000 2,000,000

Total Amount 20,000,000 20,000,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares ‘ 1,854,450 1,854,450
Total Amount 18,544,500 18,544,500

¢c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 1,854,450 1,854,450
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 1,854,450 1,854,450
Percentage of total shares held 100% 100%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event
of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 1,854,350 1,854,350

Percentage of total shares held 99.99% 99.99%
Ravi Prakash Pincha (Nominee of above)

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 0.01% 0.01%

100 Shares held by Ravi Prakash Pincha are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares « -
Total Amount 5 =

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
Note 13 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

As at the beginning of the year 134,990,758 124,922,075

Add: Profit for the year 10,008,781 10,068,683

As at the end of the year 144,999,539 134,990,758
Securities Premium

As at the beginning of the year 77,042,500 77,042,500

Add: Charges during the year - -

As at the end of the year 77,042,500 77,042,500
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income - -

Other items of Other Comprehensive Income - 2
Total 222,042,039 212,033,258
Note 14 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Car Loan From Bank - -
Secured by way of hypothecation of Car Purchased
Total Facility Amount - Rs.44,00,000/- repayable in 36
equal monthly installments of Rs. 1,47,196/- each
including interest @ 12.50% starting from 07.04.15
and last installment falling due on 07.03.18
Total non-current borrowings - -
Note 15 Other Financial Liability (Non Current)

Advance against properties - -
Total . -
Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings (Current)

From other than Related Parties (Unsecured) = -
Total - -
Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade Payables
To micro enterprises & small enterprises; H
To other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 120,932 312,710
Total 120,932 312,710




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

Current maturity of long term debt - -
Other Liabilities 64,269 74,200

Qutstanding Statutory Payment 30,567 23,244

Total 94,836 97,444

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities

Advances from Customer and Others 10,195,119 3,101,500
Total 10,195,119 3,101,500

Note 19 Provisions

Provision for Income Tax 2,400,000 4,557,192

Total 2,400,000 4,557,192




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935
Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations

Sales of Services (Construction Activities)
Rental Income (Including Rs.90,000/- from holding company)

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Interest on Loan
Sundry Balances written back
Other Income

Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Contract Labour Charges

Professional Charges

Other Construction Expenses
Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories
(A) Opening Inventory
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Sub Total (A)
(B) Closing Inventory
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives
Total

Note 25 Finance Cost

Interest Paid

Other Borrowing Cost (Finance Charges)
Total

Year ended 31.03.20

Year ended 31.03.19

9,464,726

2,700,945 3,716,497
2,700,945 13,181,223
13,212,771 14,712,175
1,201,539 502,440
14,414,310 15,214,615
= 1,950
591,300 684,361
591,300 686,311
12,476,659 19,820,459
18,680,429 18,081,969
31,157,088 37,902,428
12,476,659 12,476,659
19,271,729 18,680,429
31,748,388 31,157,088
(591,300) 6,745,340
508,246 632,939
508,246 632,939




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements

Note 26 Other Expenses
Bank Charges
Municipal Tax on Rented Property
Rates & Taxes
Rent
Electricity Expenses
Computer Expenses
Filing Fees
General Expenses
Insurance Charges
Interest on Statutory Dues
Maintenance Charges
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Other Repairs
Postage & Telegram
Printing & Stationery
Labour Charges
legal & Professional Charges
Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses
Travelling Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Total

Year ended 31.03.20 Year ended 31.03.19
2,101
612,824 738,261
11,849 10,580
34,787 31,872
9,450 8,250
5,812 22,363
3,199 7,800
- 24,035
152,631 45,352
288 318
675,047 609,129
166,507 581,104
195,613 10,875
1,775 40
2,497 9,523
250,000 18,529
321,218 27,425
102,301 1,535,566
30,582 277,850
28,470 26,163
5,000 5,000
2,500 2,500
2,614,451 3,992,535




KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly RDB Realty
Private Limited)
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying IND-AS financial statements of RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE

PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly RDB Realty Private Limited), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement
of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended on that date, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the
aforesaid IND-AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
‘ccepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March, 2020, its Loss (including other
_omprehensive income), Changes in Equity and Cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SA’s) section 143(10) of the

Companies Act, 2013. My responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND-AS financial statements section of my report. I am independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the IND-AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and I have fulfilled
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. [ believe
that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my

audit of the IND-AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of my audit of the IND-AS financial statements as a whole, and. in forming my opinion thereon,
nd I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

rReporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is

an unlisted company.

Information other than the IND-AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does
not include the IND-AS financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. These other information is
expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the IND-AS financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the IND-AS

hnanclal swaieiticus vt 1y Keowieuge owained during the couise 01y audlit or oLtherwise appears Lo be
materially misstated.
If, based on the work | have performed. | conclude that there is a material misstatement of thi

information, I «u e uired to cepoit that fact. 1 have nothing to report in this rega:d.
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these IND-AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the IND-AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the IND-AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
-sing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company

r to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IND-AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate' to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, I am
also responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the IND-AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern. A
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, mcij‘lglmg ﬁiK \
disclosures, and whether the IND-AS financial statements represent the underlying tran &eﬁeps and ’)

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. \ O 5, faa.
s
-9
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the IND-AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter
should not be communicated in my' report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
overnment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such

checks of the books and records as | considered appropriate and according to the information and

explanations given to me, I set out a statement on the matters spe(:lﬂed in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the

Order, to the extent applicable.

N a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b)  As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items which considering the size
and nature of operations of the company appears to be reasonable. Pursuant to such program,
no material discrepancies between book records and physical inventory have been noticed on
physical verification.

c) The company does not own any immovable properties under the head Fixed assets, hence the
clause is not applicable.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. The discrepancies
noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

3. a) The company has granted unsecured loans to company covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. The terms and conditions of the grant of such
loans are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

b) There is no stipulation regarding recovery of loans as these loans are repayable on demand.
The aforesaid loans being repayable on demand, there is no amount overdue for more than
ninety days in respect of recovery of principal and interest of the above loans.

4.) According to the information and cxplanations given to me and the records of the Company
examined by me, the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, ha
complied with in respect of loans, investments guarantees and securities given by the 4'
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T KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and
the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities and there is no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the
financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by me and according to information and
explanations given to me, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by me and the information and explanations
given to me, the Company does not have any outstanding from any banks or government nor has it
any outstanding debenture. The company has accepted loan from Non-Banking financial company
and has successfully repaid interest and principle as and when demanded.

In my opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to me, there was no
money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and
the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to me, I report that neither any fraud by the
company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

As examined by me, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel during
the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to me and the records of the Company
examined by me, the Company has complied with the requirements of sections 177 and 188 of the
Act with respect to its transactions with the related parties. Pursuant to the requirement of the
applicable Accounting Standard, details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in
Notes to the standalone IND-AS financial statements for the year under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to me, I report thatthe company has neither
made any preferentia! allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or paftly convertible
debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to me, I report that the compaWot
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with }qurr,_ %
‘h.",.’ \

clause is not applicable. ;fw/ LN,
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

16.) According to the information and explanations given to me, | report that company is not required to
be registered u/s 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, I report that:

1. 1 have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit.

In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from my examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and the
Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;

In my opinion, the aforesaid standalone IND-AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to my separate report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In my opinion and to the best of my
information and according to the explanations given to me, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in my opinion and to the best of my information
and according to the explanations given to me:

(a) The company does not have any pending litigation.

(b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For KRISHAN
Chartered Accq

L=

Krishan{i(umar B g
Membership No. 30255

Place: Howrah

Date: 14/07/2020

UDIN: 20302555AAAABC4121
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

TO THE MEMBERS OF RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED(Formerly RDB Realty

Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013

1 have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE

PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly RDB Realty Private Limited)as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with my

audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
cluding adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

My audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. My audit of internal

aancial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

I believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
axternal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s inferna 1
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

; — 1‘ e
A , . . /N
i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and {faighy 1cflect iﬁg‘;’}-;
¥ = My,

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipt and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company.

iiiy Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In my opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant,”» * " o~
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Krishan Kumar Bengani
Membership No. 302555
Place: Howrah

Date: 14/07/2020

UDIN: 20302555AAAABC4121
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2020

Particulars Note As at 31.03.20 As at 31.03.19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment i 93,948 174,007
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2 75,176 71,899
Total Non - Current Assets 169,124 245,906
Non Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
(iii) Other financial assets 3 45,000 -
Current assets
(a) Inventories 4 1,326,167,383 1,322,531,066
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 3,729,214 3,809,683
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 261,237 674,457
(iii) Other financial assets 7 - 725,965
(c) Current Tax Assets 8 1,043,005 363,051
(d) Other current assets 9 24,676,824 25,972,748
Total Current Assets 1,355,922,664 1,354,076,970
Total Assets 1,356,091,788 1,354,322,876
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 10 100,000,000 100,000,000
(b) Other Equity 11 (15,769,404) (14,774,531)
Total equity 84,230,596 85,225,469
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 12 90,000,000 90,000,000
Total non-current liabilities 90,000,000 90,000,000
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 49,965,254 65,677,833
(i) Trade and other payables 14 49,680,600 49,483,565
{iii) Other financial liabilities 15 1,081,868,447 1,063,295,232
(b) Other current liabilities 16 346,891 640,777
(c) Provisions 17 - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,181,861,192 1,179,097,407
Total liabilities 1,271,861,192 1,269,097,407
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,356,091,788 1,354,322,876
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This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PVT. LTD.
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars Note Year ended 31.03.20 | Year ended 31.03.19
Revenue
Revenue from operations 18
Other income 19 27,997 2,533,867
Total Revenue 27,997 2,533,867
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 20 3,636,318 274,186
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 21 (3,636,318) (274,186)
Employee benefit expense 22 796,505 825,741
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 80,059 129,823
Finance costs 23 - 4,345,771
Other expenses 24 77,624 180,779
Total expenses 954,188 5,482,114
Profit before tax (926,191) (2,948,247)
L Income tax expenses
- Current tax -
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 71,959 14
- Deferred Tax (3,277) (33,352)
Total tax expense 68,682 (33,338)
Profit after tax (994,873) (2,914,909)
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - -
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans s -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (994,873) (2,914,909)
L .ings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (994,873) (2,914,909)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000,000 10,000,000
Basic earnings per share (0.10) (0.29)
Diluted earnings per share (0.10) (0.29)

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended
31st March,2020

For the year ended
31st March,2019

A. Cash flow from operating activities : -

Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (926,191)f (2,948,247)
Adjustments for

Sundry Balances written back - (3,373)

Profit on Sale of Non Current, other than trade Investment = | -

Depreciation & Amortisation 80,0594 129,823

Interest Paid . B 80,059 4,345,771 4,472,221
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (846,132) 1,523,974

(Increase) / Decrease in Non Current Other financial assets (45,000) -

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (338,915) ¢ (274,186)

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 80,469 | 8,434,978

(Increase) / Decrease of Advances 2,021,889 48,820,327

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 197,035 K (69,685)

Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 18,573,215 { (67,439,425)

Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities (293,886)|¢ 20,194,808 10,127 (10,517,864)
Cash generated from operations 19,348,676 (8,993,890)

" =ss: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 751,915 (1,033,871)
L.on Flow before Exceptional ltems 18,596,761 (7,960,019)
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 18,596,761 (7,960,019)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets > ¥
Net cash from investing activities - -
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (15,712,579) 12,655,720
Interest Paid (3,297,403) (19,009,982) (4,345,771) 8,309,949
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (19,009,982) 8,309,949
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (413,221) 349,930
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 674,457 324,526
261,237 674,457
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 236,596 639,241
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 24,642 35,216
261,237 674,457

For Krishan Kumar Béngani-
Chartered AcCountant
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This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even ?ate.
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Tangible

Faniieulars Planth | Fumturs® | oopes | conipenens Mobile Total

Machinery Fixtures
Gross carrying amount
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.18 7,500 7,100 1,441,449 58,365 52,599 1,567,013
Additions -
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 7,500 7,100 1,441,449 58,365 52,599 1,567,013
Additions
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.20 7,500 7,100 1,441,449 58,365 52,599 1,567,013
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.18 3,681 5,691 1,150,501 55,439 47,871 1,263,183
D¢ ciation charge during the year 431 253 127,041 2,098 129,823
Disposals -
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 4,112 5,944 1,277,542 55,439 49,969 1,393,006
Depreciation charge during the year 431 253 79,375 - - 80,059
Disposals -
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.20 4,543 6,197 1,356,917 55,439 49,969 1,473,065
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.18 3,819 1,409 290,948 2,926 4,728 303,830
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 3,388 1,156 163,907 2,926 2,630 174,007
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20 2,957 903 84,532 2,926 2,630 93,948




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 2 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets

Note 3 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposit (For dematerilisation of shares)

Note 4 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in process

Note 5 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables
More than six months
Less than six months
Receivables from related parties
More than six months
Less than six months
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Break up of security details of Trade receivables
Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Note 6 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)
Cash in hand (As certified by the management)
Others

Note 7 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Companies (Interest bearing)

Note 8 Current tax assets and liabilities
Unsecured, considered good
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS

Note 9 Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with Statutory Authorities
Advance to Holding Company
Advance to Staff AN TN
Advance against land to vendors
Cther Advances

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

75,176 71,899
75,176 71,899
45,000 -
45,000 :

1,326,167,383

1,322,531,066

1,326,167,383 _ 1,322,531,066
3,729,214 3,809,683
3,729,214 3,809,683
3,729,214 3,809,683
3,729,214 3,809,683
236,596 639,241
24,642 35,216
261,237 674,457

- 725,965

- 725,965
1,043,005 363,051
1,043,005 363,051
1,286,924

122,491 86,491
22,331,000 22,331,000
Y 473343 P 7 - B r 2=
24,676,824 25,972,748




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 10 Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

Number of Shares 15,000,000 15,000,000
Total Amount 150,000,000 150,000,000
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total Amount 100,000,000 100,000,000
c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000,000 10,000,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 5,363,046 5,363,046
Percentage of total shares held 53.63% 53.63%
Sanjay Surana
Number of Shares 1,000,000 1,000,000
Percentage of total shares held 10.00% 10.00%
Gaurishankar Kothari
Number of Shares 1,000,000 1,000,000
Percentage of total shares held 10.00% 10.00%
Shyam Sunder Mohata
Number of Shares 933,477 933,477
Percentage of total shares held 9.33% 9.33%
Santosh Devi Dhoot
Number of Shares 600,000 600,000
Percentage of total shares held 6.00% 6.00%
Kedar Nath Dhoot
Number of Shares 540,977 540,977
Percentage of total shares held 5.41% 5.41%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment

of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

f) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 562,870 562,870
Percentage of total shares held 5.63% 5.63%.
g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares & Amount - -
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought
back from shareholders within the period of 5 vears
No such shares have been issued nor there has veen any buy-back
/ w1 =
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 11 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year

Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income

Note 12 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
(Unsecured, as per terms of agreement)
Advance against Properties

The above deposit have been received from Developers pursuant to Joint
Development Agreement between Landowner (RDB Jaipur) and Developers

Note 13 financial liabilities - Borrowings

(Unsecured, Repayable on Demand, Interest bearing, Including Interest})

Non Banking Financial Companies
Other body Corporates

Note 14 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
Qutstanding dues of micro & small entreprises
Other than above

Note 15 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Advances from Others

Note 16 Other Current Liabilities
QOustanding Payables to Directors
Statutory Payables
Other payable

Note 17 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax

As at 31.03.20

As at 31.03.19

(14,774,531) (11,859,622)

(994,873) (2,914,909)

(15,769,404) (14,774,531)

Total (15,769,404) (14,774,531)
90,000,000 90,000,000

Total 90,000,000 90,000,000
1,515,021 16,068,435

48,450,233 49,609,398

Total 49,965,254 65,677,833
49,680,600 49,483,565

Total 49,680,600 49,483,565
1,081,868,447  1,063,295,232

Total  1,081,868,447  1,063,295,232
210,000

346,891 430,777

Total 346,891 640,777

Total




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Notes to the financial statements Year ended 31.03.20 Year ended 31.03.15

Note 18 Revenue from Operations
Maintenance & Other Charges = 5

TOTAL - -

Note 19 Other Income
Profit on Sale of Investment (Non Current, other than trade) - -

Interest Income 27,997 2,530,494
Miscellaneous Income

Sundry Balances written back (net) - 3,373
Total y 27,997 2,533,867

Note 20 Construction Activity Expenses

Other Construction Expenses 338,915 274,186
Interest & Other Finance Cost (in accordance with IND AS-23) 3,297,403 -
Consumption 3,636,318 274,186

Note 21 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress

Opening Inventory of Work in Progress 1,322,531,066 1,322,256,880
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress 1,326,167,383 1,322,531,066
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B) (3,636,318) (274,186)

Note 22 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives 796,505 825,741

Total 796,505 825,741

Note 23 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund - 4,345,771

Total & 4,345,771

Note 24 Other Expenses

Rates & Taxes 2,500 2,500
Filing Fees 5,300 6,215
General Expenses 33,188 200
Printing & Stationery 18,886 27,664
Professional Charges 2,750 129,200
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees 15,000 15,000
Total 77,624 180,779
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2018

100,000,000

Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year

Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019

100,000,000

Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year

Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2020

100,000,000

B. Other Equity
Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

Amount (Rs.)

Balance at 31 March 2018

(11,859,622)

Transfers
Profit for the Year
Other comprehensive income

(2,914,909)

Total comprehensive income for the period (2,914,909)
Balance at 31 March 2019 (14,774,531)
Transfers -

Profit for the Year (994,873)
Other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income for the period (994,873)
Balance at 31 March 2020 (15,769,404)
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Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars Year ended 31.03.20 | Year ended 31.03.19
Profit before tax (994,873) (2,914,909)
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (2018-19: 26.22%) - -
Other differences - -
Total - -
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 71,959 14
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 71,959 14

The tax rate used for the year FY 2019-20 and 2018-19 for reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on taxable profits under the

Income Tax Act, 1961.

Related Party Disclosure

Related Party Relationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding
Transactions & Balanaces :

No related party transactions have been been reported by the management.

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent

liability except stated and informed by the Management.

Contingent Liabilities:- Nil {P. Y, Nil)

Ind AS optional exemptions
Deemed Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment

ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for property, plant and equipment and use that as its

deemed cost at the date of transition.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Deemed Cost of Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The company did not had any Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures as at the date of transition

Ind AS mandatory exemptions
Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same
date in accordance with previous GAAP. Ind AS estimates at 1st April, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made

with conformity with previous GAAP.

De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on
or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition retrospectively from

a date of entity’s choosing.

The entity has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions prospectively from the date of transition.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of assets on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the

date of transition to Ind AS. The entity has applied this exception.
Fair Valuation of Investments

Under the previous GAAP, investments were classified as long term investments or current investments based on the intended helding
period and realisability. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of

these investments have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition.
Transition to Ind AS — Reconciliations

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables

represent the reconciliations from Previous GAAP to Ind AS:

Reconciliation of Other Equity

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus as per IGAAP

Add; Fair valuation of Secunity Deposits Recewved
Other Equity as per Ind AS

Notes:

As on 31.03.2020
(15,769,404)

(15,769,404)

As on 31.03.2019
(14,774,531)

(14,774,531)
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Under Indian GAAP, there are certain security deposits received which are carried at nominal value. Ind AS requires the measurement
of these assets at fair value at inception and subsequently these assets are measured at amortized cost, At inception date, Company
recognises difference between deposit fair value and nominal value as income/expensesand the Company recognises notional interest
income/expenseas on these deposits over the lease term.

Indian GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which facusses on differences between taxable
profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach,
which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The
application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences, which was not required
under Indian GAAP. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to different temporary differences. According to the accounting
policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.

The Company has undertaken a detailed exercise to determine the manner of allocation of expenses to inventory in context of ind AS
and accordingly realignedallocation of expenses and income to comply with Ind AS requirements.

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2020
Particulars at Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets

{i)  Investments = . .

{ii)  Trade receivables 3,729,214 3,729,214 3,729,214

(ili)  Cash and cash equivalents 261,237 261,237 261,237

(iv) Other financial assets 45,000 45,000 45,000
Total Financial Assets 4,035,451 4,035,451 4,035,451
{a) Financial Liabilities

(i)  Borrowings 49,965,254 49,965,254 49,965,254

(it} Trade and other payables 49,680,600 49,680,600 49,680,600

{iii} Other financial liabilities 1,171,868,447 1,171,868,447 1,171,868,447
Total Financial Liabilities 1,271,514,301 1,271,514,301 1,271,514,301

As on 31.03.2019
Particulars Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets

(i) Investments - -

{ii}  Trade receivables 3,809,683 3,809,683 3,809,683

(ili)  Cash and cash equivalents 674,457 674,457 674,457

(iv) Other financial assets 725,965 725,965 725,365
Total Financial Assets 5,210,105 5,210,105 5,210,105
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 65,677,833 65,677,833 65,677,833

(ii} Trade and other payables 49,483,565 49,483,565 49,483,565

(iii) Other financial liabilities 1,153,295,232 1,153,285,232 1,153,295,232
Total Financial Liabilities 1,268,456,630 1,268,456,630 1,268,456,630

Capital Requirements

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in fight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and barrowings, trade and other payables less cash

and cash equivalents
g~



31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Particulars (in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Borrowings (long-term and short-term, Including current
maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payables 49,680,600 49,483 565
Other payables (current and non-current, excluding current

49,965,254 65,677,833

- : 1,171,868,447 1,153,295,232
maturities of long term borrowings)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (261,237) (674,457)
Net debt 1,271,253,064 1,267,782,173
Equity share capital 100,000,000 100,000,000
Other equity (15,769,404) (14,774,531)
Total Capital 84,230,596 85,225,469
Gearing ratio 0.07 0.07

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
finaricial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020 and March
31, 2019.

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s
senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real estate risk.
The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure
to the market risk other than interest risk.
(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Most
of the borrowings of the Company are unsecured and at fixed rates. The Company has only one cash credit account which is linked
to the Prime Bank Lending Rate. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

(i) Price risk
The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits as
explained above.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.




Trade receivables
Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer
of ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition,
a3 large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral
as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019
More than 6 months 3,729,214 3,809,683
Others - .

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with bar:lks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in a‘_ccordance with the
Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the
year subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of
the statement of financial position at 31 March 2020 and 2019 is the carrying amounts.

Liguidity Risk

The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liguidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return.
The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of
short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5th Floor, Room No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail . vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUCTURE
PRIVATE LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its

profit or loss for the year ended on that date.
Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to this company.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014:
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E

W

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020

UDIN: 20060270AAAAFB6273
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of RDB MUMBAI
INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

i iA a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

c) The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets; hence
the clause is not applicable.

20 a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

b) In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its

business.

c) On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

3.) The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

4.) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.) The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of

India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.
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6.)

8.

o

10.)

11.)

1z2.)

13.)

14.)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any

outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has

neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.
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15.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.

16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 14.07.2020
UDIN: 20060270AAAAFB6273
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Statement of chunges in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Office Equipment Computers Total
Gross Bloek

Balanceas ut | April 2018 47,000 1,18,784 1,065,784
Additions during the veal 22,625 539,448 82,073
Disposals E .

Balance as at 31 March 2019 69,625 1,78,232 2,47,857
\\\l\_ljl:.'\’l-l'- - - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 69,625 1,78,232 2,47,857
Accumulated depreciation

Bulance asat 1 April 2018 29,734 80,314 1,10,048
Depreciation charge during the year 14,900 45,3409 60,339
Disposals " .

Balance as at 31 March 2019 44,724 1,25,603 1,70,387
Depreciation charge during the year 11,363 30.665 42,028
Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2020 56,087 1,56,328 2,12,415
Net Bloek

Balance as at 31 Mareh 2019 , 24,901 52,509 77,470
Balance as at 31 March 2020 / 13,538 21,904 35,442
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Notes (o the linancial statements as on 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Note 4 Finaneial Assets (Investment)

&) lovestments in Equity lnstruments

(L) i Associates
Ungquoted

Crivlife Realty Private Limited 43,000 43.000
{Eguiny share with Face value of Rs. 10 per share)

1) lnvesuments in Partnership Firm
6,93.00.473

Wewent Associntes (1% shure in Profit) 78143 444

Uisclostire ol tnvestunent i Pactnership Fivnd (Kegent Assuciates)

Nume wl Partier u

RDB Mumbal Infrasteactures Private Limited (5 1%) 781,493,444 6,93,00.473
Dharmendra | alehand Jain (11%) 1. 38.48,6004 1.59.03.642
Lalchand Pannalal Jain (1 1%) 50.42.604 50,68.804
Leeta Lalchand Jain (11%) 38.49.604 59.05,804
Mahendra Lalehand lam (8%e) 9500433 93.41.307
Praseen Lalchand Jain (8%0) | 18.23.893 | 18.64,767
12,62,U8,583 11,75,84,8458
Regent Developers & Builders (60% share in Profit) (56,827) (37.410)
Disclosure of Investment in Partnership Fum
Name of Parter and Share of Investment
RDE Mumbai nfrastructures Private Limited (60%) (56,827) (37410
keshulal Mehi (25%) 38.551 [.38.163
Mahendrg Bukadia (13%0) 2,898 2,898
4,622 103,650
) lavestments i L imited Linbility Partoership (LEP)
H{DB Mumbai Housing LLP (67% share in Prolig) 34,786 0.06,344
Disclosure of Invesunentin Parnership Fiom
Name of Partner and Share ot Invesunwin
R SMuambi Infrastructures Private imited (67%) 34 786 bbb 344
Shashnns alsade 133%) 113066 3.16.296
3,47,852 9.82,640
RDB Mumbai Realty LLP (90% share in Profit) 77.277 4.51.892
Dnsclosure ol Investment in Partnership Firm
el Partner and Share of lnyvestment
ROE Mumba Infrastructures Private Limited (90%) 71277 4.51.892
Hurish daln (10%0) (3,516) 49_108
73,762 3,01,000
ised deposit with [UICT Bank e 518,277 5.00.000
7,87,59,957 7,04,24,299

Note S Deferred tax sissels (net)

Befered Tan Assets o
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Notes to the Noancial statements as on 31 Muarch 2020 31 March 2019

- On Fised Assets |00 3,801

SO Brought Forward Losses 14.93.452 22 68665

Lot 14.94,462 22,72.460
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Notes o the financial stlements as on 31 March 2020

Note 0 lnventories

CAL Liwer of cost or Net Realisable value)

31 March 2019

Lngold Flat = Hema Niwas CHS Lid 23709618 3.65.70.555

Work i process 30.80.99 854 28,02,79.195
Lot lnventories 331809472 31.68.49,750
Note 7 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
I'rde receivables 05,58.473 1,47,01,872
[Recevables from related partics = -
s Allowanee Tor deabtful debts = ¥
Latal 95,538,473 147,01.872

Break up ol security details:

| tade receivables

(u) Secured, considered good =
(i Unsecured, considered good 9558473
() Doubiful -
Liess: Allowance Ry doubtul debis *

1.47.01.872

| utal 95,538,473

1,47.01,872

Note 8 Pinancial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(i) Balanees with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 18,43.847 398,773
(b Cash o hand 1,99.679 291,387
Fistal 20,443,526 6,890,160
Note U Financial Assers (Other Rudncial assers)
b secured, constderd sood

Security Depusit 1.58.75,039 |,54,46,651
1 utal 1,58,75,039 1,54,40,6051
Note 1 Current tax assets and labilities
Coorpent tax 48560 (Advimee Ingome Tax and T1S) 48.75.513 4945518
1 il 48,75,515 4945518
Note T Other current assets
Advange w supplicrs against Materiul | 47.694 19,470
Hakiees with government authorities 27.02.660 18428
Pre paid espenses - -
e Adyansees A UA3EL0 32930810
Lot 35904164 3.60.77,708
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Sotes b the Tinancial statements as on 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

SNote 12 Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- ench)

wi Authorised Share Capital
Numiber ol Shares 1,00,00,000 1,00,00.000
Fotal Amount 10.00,00,000 10,00,00.000

b dssued. subseribed and tully paid Share Capital
Number o Shares 10,000,000 10.00,000
Fotal Amount 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

<) Keconetliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding

Asat the beginning of the yedr 10,00,000 10,00,000
Add lssued durimg the year = =
As it the end ol the year ]U,UU.UUU |U.“U,UUU

o Detgls of Shreholders holdmg more: than 3% shures with voung nght

Napmne of Bquity shareholders
R Realty & dnfrastiusiuee L

INmier o Shares K RV RVIVIY 5, 10,000

Percemage of Total shares held 31.00% 31.00%
kerran Ponnamciyand Mali

Numiber ol Shures 1,063,330 1.63.330

Percentage of Total shares held 16.33% 16.33%
Vikash Mohan Jhanwar

Number of Shares 1,63,340 1.63,340

Percenage of Total shares held 16.33% 16.33%
Wy asein Javed Khan

Number ot Shares 1.63,330 1,63.330

Percentage ol Total shares held 16.33% 16.33%

o) Ul riuhis, preferences & resirictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repavment of capital

[he Company has only oneclass of equity shares Fueh holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vote per
e The compin declares and pays dividends fn lidian tupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Phrections s subgeet Lo the approval ol the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. [n the event
A hiquedabien o the company. the holders of ecquiny <hares will be entitled to recéive remarming ysseéts ol the
SOy e Jestibution o all preterential amouns The distributon will be in praportion 1o the number
equitysshaves held o thessharcholders

2 shares el by oldy. nitmiae holding, or subedinnes grassociates of hualding

Sanwe of Lguwils Shurcholdors
R Healty & Inlrastiucture Ltd
Number of Shares 5,10,000 510,000
Percentage ol Total shares held 5% 31.00%

o) Shares are reserved {or issue under options or conlracls.
Number o Shards & Amount -

Iy Shares dssied G consideration other than cnsh ar bonos to shareholders or bpugh;_ﬂck ﬁ‘u_m
sl i the perg 3 yewrs
Nosueh shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back
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Nates o the fimancial statements as on 31 March 2020

Nute 13 Other equiny

Heserve & surplus

surplus from Statement ol Profil & Loss

31 March 2019

As at the beamning of the year (64,42.297) (53,82.446)

Add: Profit tor the year 6,537,463 (10.59.851)

Add Ind AS Adjustments = 2

As al the end of the year (37.84,832) (64.42.297)
Uther Comprehensive Tncome

Fyuity Instruments through other comprehensive imcome - -

Other mems ot Cther Comprehensive Income - -
Lutul (57.84,832) (64,42,297)

Note 14 Finaneial labilities - Borrowings

[ nsecured. repayiible on Demand. including interest aecrued)

Froiny Dyrectors 14,75,31,000

123851000
16,24,53,921

28,539,84,921

2, 70,30 472

2,70,30.472

2.78.35,376

Fraim Lthers 498,091
Lotal 15,10,29,691
Note I3 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)

Interestacerued and due on borrawing =
1 otal -
Note 16 financial lixbilities - Borrowings
iSecured, repayvable on Demand, meluding interest accrued)

Chwerdraft tacility From Banks 75.48.937
ol 75,48,937

2,78,35,3706

Sole 17 Finaneial Habilities - Trade and other pavables

bAS GBI

witstinding dues.ol e & small enlreprises

wiler than above

1:61,29,538

Lotal 1,49.16,61Y9

1,61.29.538

Nate I8 Fionaneial liabilities - Other Financial Linbilities

[6.00.428

16,00,428

YU8.47 456

9.98,47,456

Uither pavable 1.02,356
ook Debt From Bank =
Lotal 1,02.5506
Sote 19 Other Curvent Linbilities
Advanees from Custoners [ Booking 30,25 30,880
T utal 30,25,30,880
Note 20 Provisions

12,200

Praveston: for rases
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Notes o the naneiad sttements as on 31 Mareh 2020 31 Mareh 2009

ier of T advaee tay and TS Rs: 272800 (P F M VL

Total
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Notes to the Tinancinl statements
Note 21 Revenue from Operations

Sale ol Lonstrugtion Activities

Onher lneome of Constraction Activities

Sliare ol Profi trom nvestment m Frm ¢ Non Current, Trade)
For Al

Noe 22 Other Invaine

Miscedlneous Jutome

[Batbiiee amount writen back
L utal
Note 23 Construction Setivity Expenses

otlser Coombiietivg [ spenses

[rteheshde C e Fiiibee Lost (in accordance with IND A5-23)

o unsunition

Nte 24 Clinges ininy entories of work-in-progress

L ¥t | Gy wd Wl Progegss
Capenmng fvaniary of L oisaild Hags

Frms = Clomttie Daveritars of Woek i Progress
| e ositi bventott ob ubseld Tits

Chrereise )y dedrease i inventorics (A-13)

Neile 25 baiployee Beaelits Dapense

Suluries, W lges wd meentives

Tuotal

Nufe 26 Fieee Cost

Progessing loes Tor QL) &30

Folul

31 Mareh 2020

31 March 2019

L.su,u0.00u 6.71,28:168
: 25 58,044
63.97.072 (3.91.432)
24397072 6,92,94,750
59,144 54722

. 12,02.837

59,148 12,62,559
.62.81.712 7.73.38.644
1,81,11.462 2.60.91.307
3.43,93,174 10,36,29,951

28,0279 193
3.68. 7033
(3RO 85
(237080100

2824 44,294

(2N A2.T9 1495

LA T0555)

(149,359,722} (3,44,05,450)
19.26.97| 10,19.067
19,26,974 10,019,067

172418 177,600
172418 1,77,600
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Nutes L e finsmeind stalements

Sate 27 Gihers Bapenses

Kates-d Lanes:

[Lent

[ lectrieny Dxpenses

Netur el L spenses

Lathae Raepaurs

[y elline & Copvesinee Expn
Primtae | elegiph & Telephanes
P A SR,

Lodsbind Feas & Diking [ees
[sterest Penilly Chidges
Nliseethiseots Expeines

Pl 1oebis Advinees Woen 0L

Prytessiionnd Clarees
Faaridy G hin
staed wetbare oo Dede Helreshment expenses

wlverisanent de Pubioly Lxpehses
Chlier Sales bapenses
UL S IR et

Statutory Audit | ees

L s Ao baes

Lotal

31 Mureh 2020

31 Muaceh 2019

31142
1,10.330 84,780
1,06.533 94,068

24922 17.5060

30913 67.774

168035 39,804

§7.405 | 12,130

- 3.5
2831 44 432

72.530 95,685

92395 e
203 628 325441

e 0,304
147,704 L7173
42 Leu 44 400
7,500 7,500
21,000 21,000
1090876 11.35,690
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Additional notes to the financialstatments for the year ended 31 Mareh 2020
s Reconcibiation of Effvetive Tax Rate
e oot espiy s Lor the vedr can be recancibed 1o the wecounting prolitis follows
= -
| Partivulars 31 March 2020 31 Murch 2019
T P = S [+ A
| Pratin beloreaax 1790472 AUa9 85 1)
I enpense caleuluted ) 26% (201 26%) 285,000 =
e ailterenees - =
Fotald 2,685,000 -
Adjustmenis reeaimtsed in thecursent veur m relation to thecurrent tax of prior years FULUG -
te Ly recognised in proficor loss 4,53,003 -
i Pl i ke st ot i v 200920 and 018219 reconethationg above 15 the compasate s payable on tixable prafits wiler the Inewme Tas

et e ont provasiaia ] ORI o i engienae did sl P L san o el thar ol s adit o

n 20 Upevivtnig baase

NP B A% | enwes the disclosure ol transactions with the respeet 1o lease of premises s disclosed as follows:

Assaels Gtbei v Opernting Lease

I

Jebtot e stitenent of Profivand Loss and Ks 1045,000 (Previous Year #s NIy has been inventorised tor the eurrent year

ey bt guimmesciad premises ot Operiting Leinse and lense rent of Bs NIL (Previous Year Rs H3 1340 has been

Fhe Conpiny does net haveany, contingen| lease rental expenses: income.

e

Kebned Party Desclusure

[t 5 e By e Tndian Accountig Stindared 24 Und AS-243 " Related Party Disclosures™ are givern

oot

sty ietuny 4l lurbekifia

A1 March 2020

31 Mureh 2019

|
!

2,51 00,000

3.42.00.000

1100000

3.02.00,000

8702813

parsladile e

F Lot Tk

14,75.3 1,000

23531000

| Interestace rued on Loan Taken

7.81.98,680

[y sttt 1 parenership i

70381299
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sddiditinnt notes 1o the fuaneidstatinents fhr the cearended 31 Mareh 2020
Finspenl lostraments and Related Diselosures
[he sienifieint tecouniing policies, meluding the criteria of recogmition, the basis of measurement and the basis an which income
andenpenses dre recuumsad, jn respect of eachrclass of financial asscts and finaneial liabilities are disclused in note 2.15 of the: Lt AS

el stargiments

e il linahicial fsiaments by Gulegonivs i of Mareh 21, 2020 were as follows:

Parcticulars

Lt Finanaas] Asset
i Investitients
vy Tede reevivalils
AE s casteiuiealens

(ORI A .'| IS

Lutarl bt Assels

Tl Lok
Ll s an
(0 U paed Dmiil bl plsaiiles
P e hisncial abiiiles

Tutal Fiosneid Lsbilities

Fair Value R
A Lair Yalue

through profitand
Mg BEETIEAES through OC1

luss

Amertised Cost/
Al cust

7,87,39,957

9558473

2043326
L 38,7300

Larrying amaount
as at 31 March
2020

7,875,957
45.38.473
20435
s Ul

J

TTRIRERTRTE A

UG 30 593

|3.85 78028
| 49 10,619
102,356

135575628
A4 16614
102,556

17,35,97.803

17.35.97.803

e vilue ol oaneral mstruments by categones as0f Mureh 31, 2019 were us [ollows:

Partivulars

b Tmndil s
1 Ieestmends
it Urasde resealbles
e Ll s egqualents
o e Bl assdts

Putarl Frsineiand Assets

| [craturitaes
1l sl BRI i avalites
Catlgr el Db

Vot Lol Labitivies,

Fuiv Value

Lair Value
thraugh profin s Sallong o8

Amortised Cost/

Crrying amount
asat 3l Mareh

bss through OCH AL cost 2019
709,24 20y 7.09,24.249
- 14701872 14701872
- 6,90 160 (e R R
= 1,54,46,651 |.54,46,651
= 10,1762 482 1017 02882

AN A

(S

L. R R T

L AR M 29T
il 55y

R R RN

33.85.80,733

33,85,80,735

Diselostre of Finanend Iustruments

Lt miske managentent ubjectives sud policies

[l st gt Nnsneral abibnes epmyprise Joans aid borrowings tade and othes payables. Uhe main pucpose of these financial
Gt it anid support Compnys operivons. Thie Conpany’s rmerpal (nancial sssets ielude trade wnd olherrecevables, cush

o luies and advanees and retundable depusits it derive dircetly from its operations

ST

e oy 15 e posed 1o markes sk eredit risk und Hguidity risk. The Company s seniar management oversees the management uf these
Tishe Dl oty senior minsgement is supporied by a Bnancil risk committee that advises on financial nsks and the appropnate
[anctal rish govemanee rameswotk for the Company, The [inaneial nek commitiee provides assurance fo the Compuny’s senior munagement
it e Company < Dnanew sk acuvities are poverned by approprinte policies and procedures and that financial visks are identified,

& accurdanes with the Company’s policies and risk objeetives, The Board of Lirectors reviews and agrees policics for
porisks w kel e sumieised beluw

prens et aid

o dehal
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Additional nutes to the financialstatments for the year ended 31 March 00

st sk Bt skt e Biie Vidug of Tuture cash o oftw Nnaneiad instruteent witl Ductumebesiuse of changes in kel prees
Nlurket risk eomprises- o 1ypes of [15K; inteeest rale rigkund othigr price tsk, suclius egquity price risk and comimodily. real estate nsk The

Cantisany has potenered inteany foren exchange of commudity derivative contracts, Accordingly, there is oo sigmiticant exposuie (o the

Pl bt sk arhel s mrerest risk

ol e
pust re ek s the sk than the T value or futuee ¢ush tlow s of o fnancial mstrament will Nuctuate becuuse ol chamges 11 marke
et ke e Company's expasuee 1o the risk ol changes m market mierest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt

il FTHSTIEY witly J[u;llil'.-._.l sl ey

[l L lompis maiidees e nlerest e nsk by raving 4 balunced portiolio of fxed and varuble e Toans aid orrowings Most olthe
busrawings ot Company e unseoured ad i fixed rates The Conpany has only one cashreditaccount whigh'is Hnked 1o 1he
Prine Bank Lending Rae: The Company does nor enter mid any Interest rale SwWaps

(RN TS 418
[ Uiy s not made ans mvestments 107 WG PUPOsts e st pluses have begn deployed in lank deposits aseaplained

il

Lt Uil

Credin s Uie tan Diatcaunterparty il not met 1S abligations dnder 8 financial mstewment of customer contract, leading o o finangial
Loee Tl ammpans e exposed 1o credit nsk Fromats operating activitics {primarily trade receivablestand from s {inaneingactivines:
aourity deposits, loans wemplovees and other finanetal instruments

t b e bandadi o goint devetopment depisit

T e
[t ables resuttme dron sale ol properiies: Customer eredit tisk 15 fanited by requiting customers o pay advaness before transter of
ot theterore, substantially ehimmaimy the Company s eredit rskon this respect.

e of propertes Credit rish s anunige] by Ccacli business unitsubjeet wthe Compuny's established

[ i s el B Fromt athir 1
seivables are regularly monitored The

sl e s b vontisl oo W sustomer ceedil sk manggemant: Cstandmg cuslomes e
alcaeh reparting date o wn indivedund batsi= Tor mijor chents, o addibon. alarge number af minar

Pt ivsess partanmel
el o el rskoa the

are sruyped e oo ienvons droups st mssessesd] fur impaanent sulbestively The asimum e
el e earrying virtoe bfeadh class ol Fiitncal ssets T he Company dogs nel hold vollitentd as seeunly, The Lapany’s

Credit perrod peneslly ringes trom - 30-610 days

e gz ot e iecei ablesare g Tl

31 March 2020 31 Murch 2019

P ticudsers

9338473 [ 4701872

Nl

S RS

AT

P s watly Pl aind finaneinl mstnsions
foi Daities syith ban ks and Graners! institudions is nrnised [y thie Compiany’s treasury departnent in accardance with the

L 1=

s pobicy Livesinens of surplus unds are e snly with approved counterparties and within credit limivs assigied o sl

LS 1§ BTN

CRPEREO TRy

Cibmte L wredin s sre reviesed 0y g oty s Buard of Dirdctons o an aniual busis, and may be updated throughoul the yeir
Cuppeovl o the Foged The Tt are set o miimise the concentiabian ol fisks and thererore mitigute finanel less trougha

sl
Cosparty s maxinum exposure to eredit nisk for thie components of the stalement of

courterparty s potentrl talre (o make payments Lhe
PoNareh 2019 aind 2008 s the earyingamouits:

Vi e ] paisativ il

|Lfutpny Jhisk
it decismant tebatis teedeproyment ol ssgphis it e suide by thie teners of safery, Liqudmy and revem lhe

Fh2 by
s st i wll plivaes hove sun Ve leguidiiy da meet 1ts Jiabilities when due n Gase ol shor

P U Heegtntadity Dhsho by
o Lt 0 absonns shait-tarm s P s Bk
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sdditional notes t the mneinistatments Tor the vene ended 31 March 2020

Carpital Yhozigeanci

Pt pun syl th

Company’s cupital management, capial includes tssued coyuity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves

aitrbeabe o the cquity holders of 1he Company The primary objective of the Lompany's ¢apital management is (o maximise the

sharehilder vl

o s gpital straeture ad makes adiushineats i tehy o g

R IR TR bR T U T

Pt v st Hil dipnal srrieiuee e Clontsing m

Dlae L sy aHsiars capilil tsa

s e

jew shurdy

Chers i i

Ul ol ledEs s st dabe st beaemne loansand borsn

TR OHOITL ol ons sl the egurements ot e
v st e didena pavinent o shareiolders. et et
UL (b0, el 18 et debt divided by total capial plus net

v Tragheewind uther pasalies Jass caslaned cush equivalents
1248} :

Farticakars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Do ings (ldng-1emm and short-term, meluding current maturities of long term bormwlngs) 15,85,78,028 31,38.20,297
Lraale puvables 1,49, 16,619 1,61,29538
i pryables ronrrent & non-curvent, excluding current maturities of long term borrowings 1,02,556 2.86,30,900

M) 43,52 (6,90, 160)

ozl e gl cqulyalenms

Nt ey

17,15,54,277

35,780,573

1 G G e

(REERVARAATH]

iyl el
I}IIIIJI u\|l||;‘.\ l (57.84.832) (G4 42,2970
Fatad Capital 42,15,108 35,57,703
Covan e Tatin .02 0.l
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Additional notes to the financialstatments for the year ended 31 March

2020
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